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True Joy is our 2025 Color of the Year. It’s an optimistic,
yellow shade which was selected after extensive research
into design, cultural, economic and social trends.

On the cover:

We partnered with the Lahore Development Authority to
revitalize the Shaukat Khanum Flyover, fostering a more
vibrant and uplifting urban landscape for thousands of
daily commuters in Lahore. Over 1,300 liters of Dulux
Weathershield range now uplifts the area’s visual appeal,
provides weather-resistant protection for longer, while also
helping reduce maintenance costs — a true reflection of
AkzoNobel’s role in furthering a more sustainable built envi-
ronment in Pakistan.
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ABOUT AKZONOBEL

Let’s paint the future together

As experts in making paints and coatings, chances are you’re only ever a
few meters away from one of our products.

Active in over 150 countries, we’ve set our sights on becoming the global
industry leader. It’s what you’d expect from one of the world's most
sustainable paints companies, which has been inventing the future since
1792.

Our world class portfolio of brands — including Dulux, International, Sikkens
and Interpon - is trusted by customers around the globe. Helping us to
color people’s lives and protect what matters most.

From deep beneath the ocean, to homes, cities, transport and even outer
space, our products and technologies are exploring new frontiers. Because
every surface is an opportunity.

Let’s paint the future together.

AkzoNobel

Dulux;' AInternational.

 Skkens_
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STRATEGY

At AkzoNobel, we operate a global portfolio of Paints and Coatings
businesses. Our strategic approach is therefore focused on the specific
requirements of different markets and customers, which results in distinct
and effective strategies to outperform in the areas where we’re active.

We’ve established the following overarching strategic pillars across our
portfolio of businesses:

e Sustainability-driven innovation
e Growth in focus segments and markets
e |ndustrial excellence and simplifying our execution model

These pillars provide the foundation for our sustainable long-term value
creation moving forward and are described in more detail as under.

“Dulux’ =3
o I
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Sustainability-driven innovation

We’re committed to capturing the opportunities that sustainability
presents as a catalyst for innovation. We recognize that sustainability is
driving changes in our industry and believe this aligns with our strengths
in innovation and our leadership position in sustainability.

We’'re developing more sustainable products that differentiate us from
competitors, allowing us to gain market share and generate higher
margins. We're also focused on accelerating our development efforts and
reducing time to market.

During the year, we launched several solutions that demonstrate
our focus on driving industry change, especially in our key
end-user segments:

* Dulux Professional range of high-performance decorative paints
launched to meet needs of large-scale commercial, residential and
infrastructure projects. Its primed to deliver better application efficiency,
sustainability benefits and more durable protection at optimal costs

to project interiors and exteriors. Plans are on track to further expand
the Dulux Professional portfolio with the intent to expand play in the
professional coatings market.

* As the market leader in retail woodcare, we drove the next wave of
innovation and upgradation with our latest launch ‘Dulux Woodcare
Supreme 2K PU’. This first-of-its-kind premium woodcare offering brings
the cutting edge 2K PU technology advantage to Pakistan and delivers
on exceptional quality, superior finish and longer-lasting protection.



Growth in focus segments and markets

Our growth strategy focuses on continued investment in growth markets
and in segments where we have differentiated positions. To this end,

in 2024, we forayed into a new segment with our portfolio of Marine
Coatings in Pakistan.

Our anti-corrosive protection, fouling control technologies, passive fire
protection and aesthetic solutions are underpinned by unrivalled customer
service and in-field support, no matter where our customers find themselves.

As well as complementing our leading positions in the premium segment,
we also understand the importance of solid positions in our mid-market
segments. This enables us to drive growth, increase scale, achieve higher
absolute profit and protect the profitability of our premium offerings. Our
approach is tailored to the uniqueness of each segment and focuses

on existing AkzoNobel brands, while improving asset utilization of our
integrated supply chain.

For instance, in the decorative paints market, two new Dulux Experience
Stores redefined paint shopping experience for our premium customers
in Islamabad and Lahore in 2024. Designed to be provide a truly
interactive and immersive experience; Dulux paint customers in Pakistan
can now see our product range, test products first-hand, receive expert
advice from in-store consultants and experience the premium quality and
innovation that brand Dulux is known for — all under one roof!

While strengthening our premium core, we strengthened our presence
in the high-volume mass market segment with Dulux Promise Smart
Choice interior and exterior emulsion. This superior quality Dulux paints
proposition delivers superior opacity and coverage at unmatched

price points.

Industrial excellence and simplifying our
execution model

We know there’s significant value to be gained through improving our
operations.

During 2024, our industrial excellence program gained traction as we
continued to progress towards unleashing the full benefits by 2027. The
program aims to deliver cost reduction, enhanced efficiency, improved
service levels and heightened overall competitiveness.

We're making progress on improving operational efficiency to address
supply chain constraints that impacted our ability to meet customer
demand. At our Faisalabad site, we have successfully commissioned two
1.7 KL high speed dispensers to boost dispersion capacity and three
2.4 KL fixed mixers to expand our waterborne capacity and improve
batch flexibility. This upgrade strengthens our ability to meet the growing
customer demand for decorative paints, resulting in higher efficiency,
faster lead times, and a 25% improvement in OTIF, ensuring greater
operational agility to customize production for mid-size batches and
enhance customer satisfaction.

Incremental to the industrial excellence program, where we’re optimizing
our manufacturing site, we’re also looking to improve our functional
organization. To enhance the efficiency of our functions, we’re simplifying
operations, accelerating decision-making, and fostering a culture

of end-to-end accountability and efficient implementation. This is a
testament to our organization’s continued agility amidst an incrementally
tougher market backdrop while aiming to create a seamless experience
for both our customers and employees.
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PAINTING A MORE SUSTAINABLE FUTURE

Sustainability is at the core of our identity at AkzoNobel. It has been a
core value for many years and forms an integral part of our company
purpose ‘Paint the Future’.

In 2024, we made progress on our three focus pillars of:

e Producing durable solutions in a more sustainable manner
® Helping our customers become more sustainable
* Empowering our communities and employees

We produce durable solutions in a more
sustainable manner.

At AkzoNobel, we're aware that climate change could affect our
operations, our supply chain and our customers. So, we have set a
global target of 50% carbon reduction by 2030, on a baseline of 2018.
We have made significant progress over the last couple of years resulting
in a 38% reduction by the end of 2024.

In Pakistan as well, we're investing in a more sustainable future. 1,600
solar panels installed at our new Faisalabad site now generate over 630
MWh energy — that’s nearly 32% of the total electricity consumption at
our site annually.

Also incorporated into the Faisalabad location is a forest now expanded
to cover an area of 16,350 square feet. More than 2,500 native trees and
shrubs — planted using the Miyawaki gardening technique — are expected
to grow into a flourishing self-sustaining ecosystem over the next two
years.
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We help our customers to become
more sustainable.

As 99% of our carbon footprint is coming from our value chain, we have
set the same ambitious target of 50% carbon reduction by 2030 for our
full value chain. To make progress we need to collaborate and innovate
together with our value chain partners, such as customers and suppliers.
Globally, we are currently at 9% reduction versus our 2018 baseline.

Our sustainable solutions, both products (such as Dulux Weathershield
range of exterior emulsions, which can reduce surface temperatures
by up to 5°C) and services, are helping our customers to become
more sustainable.

Another great example in this direction is the AkzoNobel’s proprietary
International range of protective coatings which now protect the interior
and exterior surfaces of the largest Potable Water Pipeline in Pakistan.
Our globally accepted Interseal system is employed here to ensure the
highest standards of quality and performance. Funded by the Asian
Development Bank (ADB), this initiative is part of the Greater Water
Supply Scheme-Mingora Sawat, aimed at enhancing safe drinking water
infrastructure in Khyber Pakhtunkhwa cities. Scheduled to be completed
by 2026 end by the Khyber Pakhtunkhwa government 2026, the 20
kilometers long pipeline will provide drinking water to Mingora town and
its adjacent localities in Swat.




We empower our communities
and employees.

We're passionate about using the power of color to help transform
people’s lives and revitalize living spaces for communities. In 2024, we
brought new vibrancy and hope to Mustafabad with our largest ever
“Let’s Colour” project in Pakistan.

Equally important is our focus on being an outstanding workplace that
delivers extraordinary employee experience, helps our people grow,
thrive and celebrate who they are. Committed to furthering DE&I and
creating an environment where everyone feels values and empowered,
the Faisalabad site proudly welcomed female staff for the first time in
shop floor. We also launched our new Women Inspired Network (WIN)
platform, providing women with a dedicated area for lactation and is a
haven to forge new connections. Similarly, in-house sports complexes
in Lahore office and Faisalabad site are safeguarding the health and
wellbeing of our employees.

The streets of Mustafabad became a kaleidoscope of color
after we transformed the town as part of our largest ever
“Let’s Colour” project in Pakistan.

Helping residents of Mustafabad cope with living in a region
that experiences extreme heat, more than 1,000 home
exteriors were coated with Dulux Weathershield — which can
reduce surface temperatures by up to 5°C. A team of 67
painters, mural artists and AkzoNobel volunteers used more
than 8,250 liters of Dulux paint (in 51 different colours) to
usher in a world of colour for the 6,000 residents of the town.
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COMPANY INFORMATION

Board of Directors Executive Management Team

TAN TIAN HOCK SEBASTIAN  Chairman / Non-Executive Director ~ MUBBASHER OMAR Chief Executive Officer

MUBBASHER OMAR Chief Execuitive Officer / Executive Director  JAWAIRIA HASHMI Chief Financial Officer

JAWAIRIA HASHMI Chief Financial Officer / Executive Director  FAROOQ AYUB KHAN ISC manager Pakistan Malaysia Indonesia
SANA SHERAZ Country HR Manager

Share Transfer Committee ABDUL REHMAN SHABBIR Head of Brand & Customer Marketing

MUBBASHER OMAR Chief Executive Officer i

JAWAIRIA HASHMI Ohiet Financial Officer MUNEEB KHALID National Sales Manager-Auto

RABIA BAKHTAWAR PIRZADA Company Secretary :
Shares Registrar

Chief Financial Officer FAMCO Associates (Pvt)

JAWAIRIA HASHMI Ltd, 8-F, Nursery, Block 6,

Company Secretary P.E.C.H.S. Shahrah-e-Faisal,

RABIA BAKHTAWAR PIRZADA Karachi - 74000

Tel: (021) 34380101-5
Bankers Fax: (021) 34380106
CITIBANK N.A.
D EUTSCHE BANK LIMITED A.G Regional Offices
HABIB BANK LIMITED 11th Floor, Tower-A

FAYSAL BANK LIMITED Technology Park, Street-8,

Sharah-e-Faisal, Karachi
Tel: (021) 32781441-6

External Auditor

BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
2ND FLOOR, BLOCK-C

LAKSON SQUARE BUILDING NO. 1, E-Square Service Apartments, Civic
SARWAR SHAHEED ROAD Center. Block C

KARACHI ’ ’

7 42000 Office No. 7(AkzoNobel), Bahria
PAKISTAN Town Islamabad,

Tel: (051)4447968
Registered Office

346, Ferozepur Road, Lahore + 54600
Tel: (042) 111-551-111

Fax: (042) 35835011
www.akzonobel.pk

Production Facility
AkzoNobel Pakistan Limi
Plot 120 & 121,

Allama Igbal Industrial G
Chiniot-Faisalabad Roz
3-km from Sahianwal
Tehsil Chak Jhumra
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OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors are elected or appointed
as representatives of the stockholders to establish
corporate management related policies and to
make decisions on major company issues

TAN TIAN HOCK SEBASTIAN
Non-Executive Director / Chairman

Tan Tian Hock Sebastian, Regional Head of
Finance at Finance Paints South Asia, was
appointed to the Board of Directors of Akzo
Nobel Pakistan Limited on January 1, 2024.
He is an esteemed member of the Akzo Nobel
Pakistan Board of Directors, bringing a wealth
of experience and expertise to our organiza-
tion. His strategic vision, financial acumen, and
commitment to excellence have significantly
contributed to our success. He graduated with
an MBA from Imperial College Business School,
University of London, and is a Chartered
Accountant from the Institute of Singapore
Chartered Association. He is a certified Six
Sigma Black Belt for process improvement
methodologies. With 18 years at AkzoNobel,
he consistently contributes to our growth.
Previously, he served as the Head of Pricing
and Commercial at Honeywell Aviation, Asia,
gaining valuable business acumen. His dedica-
tion and vision continue to propel AkzoNobel
toward excellence.

MUBBASHER OMAR
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mubbasher Omar joined Akzo Nobel Pakistan
Limited as the Chief Executive Officer in August
2020 and was subsequently appointed to the
Board of Directors. Being a seasoned commer-
cial professional, he comes with 30 years of
diverse experience working in senior roles with
reputed market-leading organizations such as
Shell Pakistan Limited, Indus Motor Company
Limited, and Regus Pakistan Limited. He has
the ability to set strategic agenda, navigate
business through challenging environment,
manage nuances of large multi-cultural organi-
zation and deliver strong results. At AkzoNobel,
He is entrusted to lead the company’s growth
agenda, develop and retain world-class talent,
increase market presence, and enhance
customer satisfaction through consistent
delivery of high-quality products and product
innovation. He holds a degree of ‘Master of
Business Administration’ (MBA) from Lahore
University of Management Sciences (LUMS)
and has also obtained a ‘Master of Public
Administration” (MPA) from the University

of Punjab.

JAWAIRIA HASHMI
Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

Jawairia Hashmi was appointed to the Board
of Directors of Akzo Nobel Pakistan Limited in
May 2023 and serves as the Chief Financial
Officer. She joined AkzoNobel Pakistan as

an ACCA trainee in July 2011 and has been
associated with the Company since then. Her
experience encompasses Financial Reporting,
Planning and Analysis, Integrated Supply
Chain, and Commercial Controlling. She has
been instrumental in driving engagement and
collaboration among various finance pillars. She
is a qualified ACCA and holds a BSc (Hons)
Degree in Applied Accounting from Oxford
Brookes University.
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OUR EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM

1. MUBBASHER OMAR

Chief Executive Officer

Mubbasher Omar joined Akzo Nobel Pakistan
Limited as the Chief Executive Officer in August
2020 and was subsequently appointed to the
Board of Directors. Being a seasoned commer-
cial professional, he comes with 30 years of
diverse experience working in senior roles with
reputed market-leading organizations such as
Shell Pakistan Limited, Indus Motor Company
Limited, and Regus Pakistan Limited. He has
the ability to set strategic agenda, navigate
business through challenging environment,
manage nuances of large multi-cultural organi-
zation and deliver strong results. At AkzoNobel,
He is entrusted to lead the company’s growth
agenda, develop and retain world-class talent,
increase market presence, and enhance
customer satisfaction through consistent
delivery of high-quality products and product
innovation. He holds a degree of ‘Master of
Business Administration’ (MBA) from Lahore
University of Management Sciences (LUMS)
and has also obtained a ‘Master of Public
Administration’ (MPA) from the University of
Punjab.

2. JAWAIRIA HASHMI

Chief Financial Officer

Jawairia Hashmi was appointed to the Board
of Directors of Akzo Nobel Pakistan Limited in
May 2023 and serves as the Chief Financial
Officer. She joined AkzoNobel Pakistan as

an ACCA trainee in July 2011 and has been
associated with the Company since then. Her
experience encompasses Financial Reporting,
Planning and Analysis, Integrated Supply
Chain, and Commercial Controlling. She has
been instrumental in driving engagement and
collaboration among various finance pillars. She
is a qualified ACCA and holds a BSc (Hons)
Degree in Applied Accounting from Oxford
Brookes University

3. ABDUL REHMAN SHABBIR
Head of Marketing, Pakistan

Regional Marketing Manager Premium and
Professional - South Asia

Abdul Rehman Shabbir joined AkzoNobel as

a management trainee in June 2012. Over

the course of his career, he has demonstrated
exceptional performance and versatility, holding
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various positions in sales and marketing. His
contributions have been instrumental in driving
the paints business towards achieving its short
to long-term objectives. In his current capacity
as the Marketing Head for Pakistan, Mr. Shabbir
not only oversees operations in the country

but also plays a pivotal role in devising regional
strategies for premium wall paints and the
professional range across South Asia. He holds
a bachelor’s degree from the Lahore University
of Management Sciences (LUMS).

4. FAROOQ AYUB KHAN
ISC Manager - Pakistan, Malaysia
and Indonesia

Farooq Ayub Khan serves as the ISC Manager
for Pakistan, Malaysia, and Indonesia at the
Paints and Coatings site in Faisalabad, and

he is a member of the ISC Leadership Team
South Asia. He commenced his journey

with AkzoNobel Pakistan as an Engineering
Manager in 2015, demonstrating adept
leadership by achieving significant milestones
in restructuring, process safety, lean manufac-
turing, and sustainability. Progressing through
the ranks, he assumed the role of Hub Manager
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for Pakistan, Indonesia and Malaysia. He played
a pivotal role in the Pakistan ISC Transformation
Project, "New Moon," overseeing the seam-
less transition of the production facility from
Lahore to Faisalabad. Prior to his tenure at
AkzoNobel, he held various roles at Pakistan
Tobacco Company, spanning the supply chain
from Production Manager to Engineering
Manager and Secondary Logistics Manager.
He holds a Bachelor's degree in Mechanical
Engineering from Ghulam Ishaq Khan Institute
of Engineering Sciences & Technology and
enjoys a fulfilling family life with his spouse and
three children.

5. SANA SHERAZ
Country HR Manager

Sana Sheraz joined AkzoNobel Pakistan in
2022 as Country HR Manager and is based at
Head Office Lahore. Recently, she has taken
additional role of Talent and Performance Lead
for South Asia. She brings with her 13 years of
diverse HR experience across various industries
such as Manufacturing, FMCG, Healthcare

and the Tech Industry. Sana is a certified HR
Professional from the Chartered Institute of

Personnel Development (UK) and holds an MSc
in Human Resources & Organizational Analysis
from Kings College London. Prior to this,

she earned her BSc (Hon) in Economics and
Finance from Lahore School of Economics.

At AkzoNobel Pakistan, her prime role is to
bring the HR strategy and targets to life by
developing and maintaining HR processes and
services in line with Global priorities, partner
with local leadership and business manage-
ment teams to achieve their agenda and build a
culture conducive for growth.

6. MUNEEB KHALID

National Sales Manager, ASC Business
Head of Customer Services,

Coatings Business

Muneeb joined AkzoNobel in September
2018 as the National Distribution Deployment
Manager within the Paints business. Over two
transformative years, he successfully transi-
tioned the route-to-market strategy from a
direct to an indirect channel, redefining the
business landscape.

In 2021, he embraced a new challenge by
leading the ASC Business, officially stepping
into the National Sales Manager role in February
2022. Under his leadership, the ASC Business
has achieved impressive double-digit growth,
driven by strategic expansion both vertically
and horizontally, further solidifying AkzoNobel’s
market position. Additionally, Muneeb heads
the Customer Services Department for the
Coatings Business, ensuring exceptional
customer experience across the board. With
15 years of sales and marketing expertise,
Muneeb brings a wealth of experience from
leading companies such as Siemens Pakistan,
Avanceon, Engro Corp, and Coca-Cola Icecek.
His diverse background allows him to inte-
grate best practices and innovative strategies
from various industries, giving his business a
competitive edge. Academically, Muneeb holds
a Bachelor's degree in Electrical Engineering
from COMSATS University and an MBA in
General Management from LUMS.

Beyond work, he finds joy in spending quality
time with his spouse and two kids, balancing
his professional ambitions with his personal life
with equal passion.
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DIRECTORS REPORT
For the year ended December 31, 2024

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present the Annual Report
along with the audited financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2024.

Financial and Business Performance

The economic landscape of the country showed signs of stabilization as
the newly elected coalition government implemented corrective measures
across multiple fronts. The Pakistani Rupee remained relatively stable,
appreciating slightly against the Euro from 310.8 to 290.1. Inflation, which
had peaked at 29.7% in December 2023, declined significantly to 4.1%
by December 2024, easing cost pressures across industries. Additionally,
the State Bank of Pakistan reduced the policy rate from 22% in May
2024 to 13% by year-end, improving liquidity conditions and lowering
borrowing costs for businesses.

The impact of these economic improvements became more pronounced
in the latter part of the year. In the first half of 2024, persistently high
inflation, elevated interest rates, and subdued construction activity
continued to strain consumer demand, limiting sales growth. However,
as inflationary pressures eased and interest rates declined in the second
half, business confidence improved. The stabilization of the exchange
rate also played a crucial role in controlling the cost of imported raw
materials, providing some relief in margin pressures. Despite these
positive shifts, the construction sector remained under pressure due to
significant tax changes, including higher duties on key materials and a
revised tax regime for builders and developers. While the sector began
showing early signs of recovery, these tax challenges continued to weigh
on construction activity, indirectly impacting demand in the paints and
coatings industry.

In 2024, your Company navigated a dynamic business environment,
achieving a 3% growth in gross revenue despite facing significant external
pressures and operational challenges, demonstrating resilience and
strategic adaptability. The first half of the year was defined by persistent
inflation (15% until June 2024) and elevated import costs, which
disrupted industry dynamics. However, the addition of marine range
products to the portfolio played a key role in driving revenue growth.

At the same time, the inaugural year of the new factory in Faisalabad led
to increased operational costs, including higher administrative expenses,
which impacted profitability. As a result, the Company reported operating
loss of PKR 148 million. Additionally, higher financing costs associated
with increased capital investment resulted in a net loss of PKR 664
million. However, these investments are strategically aimed at improving
future operational efficiency and enhancing market competitiveness,
laying the foundation for long-term growth.

In conclusion, 2024 proved to be an unconventional year for the
Company, shaped by both external economic pressures and ambitious
internal expansion efforts, setting the stage for sustained value creation in
the years ahead.

Financial Performance

PKR million

2024 2023 IS:;L:::e/
Turnover 14,878 14,376 3.5%
Net sales 9,103 9,051 0.6%
Cost of Sales -7,206 -6,835 5.4%
Gross profit 1,898 2,216 -14.4%
Operating profit -148 583 -125.3%
Profit after taxation -664 175 -479.6%
Earnings per share-Rs  -13.77 3.68 -474.2%
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Health, Safety and Environment

The Company demonstrated a strong commitment to HSE and strives
to implement six HSE&S pillars, Health, People, Process, Product
Safety, Environment, and Security, in both letter and spirit to achieve
leading standards. In 2024, the new manufacturing facility in Faisalabad
completed its first year without any injuries, showcasing that safety
procedures and appliances have been fully implemented at the new site
as well.

Future Outlook

With the country’s improved economic conditions in 2025, the Company
is well-positioned to capitalize on the positive momentum, focusing

on expanding its market presence by leveraging lower inflation, stable
currency, and increasing consumer confidence. Continued improvements
in cost management and streamlined operations will be critical in driving
growth and delivering long-term value for stakeholders. The reduction

in interest rates is expected to stimulate industrial activity and housing
development, which will, in turn, create significant opportunities for
growth in the paints and coatings market. Additionally, as the construc-
tion and real estate sectors expand, the demand for high-quality paints
and coatings is anticipated to rise, opening new avenues for innovation
and product development. This growth, combined with the company’s
commitment to sustainability and eco-friendly solutions, will strengthen its
position in a competitive and evolving market.

Corporate Social Responsibility

At AkzoNobel, sustainability is integrated in everything we do. We strive
to lead our industry by reducing our impact on the Planet and consis-
tently innovating to deliver the most sustainable Paint and Coatings
solutions for our customers. Our Planet sustainability ambitions are
aligned with the Paris agreement, which aims to limit global warming.
AkzoNobel sponsored the makeover of the Alif Laila Book Bus, attracting
more children and families to engage with the mobile library, using vibrant
colors to symbolize creativity and create a welcoming environment.
AkzoNobel also donated paint to Imkaan Organization to renovate their
maternity clinic in Machar Colony, Sindh, providing a brighter and more
welcoming environment for patients.

In continuation with our collaboration with SOS Children’s Village,
AkzoNobel conducted mentorship sessions with female students
to inspire them to envision a future of professional success through
career guidance.

By fostering quality education (SDG 4), supporting good health and
well-being (SDG 3), and promoting sustainable communities (SDG 11),
AkzoNobel continues to create a lasting impact. Through our alignment
with the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals, we contribute to
building better lives and brighter futures for all.

Board, Committee and Attendance

During the year, 4 (four) Board of Directors meetings were held.
Attendance by each Director/CFO/Company Secretary was as follows:

Mubbasher Omar chief Executive Officer
Oscar Wezenbeek Chairman

Jawairia Hashmi Chief Financial Officer
Rabia Bakhtawar Pirzada Company Secretary

AN =
AR

Pattern of Shareholding

A statement showing the pattern of shareholding in the Company along
with additional information at December 31, 2024 appears on page

numbers F57.

Mubbasher Omar
Chief Executive Officer

Sebastian Tan
Chairman
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF AKZO NOBEL PAKISTAN LIMITED
REPOAT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

Ve e mudited the seed financial sist=ments of AKFD NOBEL PAKISTAN LIMITED (he Comaery), which oomprss the
statement of financial position a8 & December 31, 2024, and the stetement of profit or loss, the stiatement of comprehensive
mooms, the statement of changes m equity, the siatemant of cash fiows for the year then ended and nofes fo the fmanoial
statemants ncluding matansl sccounting policy infermation and other explenstery mformastion, and we state thet we have obtsined
all the information and sxpianations which, to tha best of our snowisdgs and balisf, were necessary for Ihe purposss of the suedit,

In aur opinion & 1o e best of our informatam and acconding lo the explanations given to us, the stelemenl of financis! position,
the siztEment of pofil or losa, the siztement of comprehensive income, the sigtsment of changss in egulty and tha siatesmsnt of
cash fiows toosther with the notes forming part thereof conform wath the accounting and reporting standsmis gs spplicabls in
Pskistan ond give the mformation required by the Companies Act, 2007 (XX of 2047}, in = manner so required and espectively
give a true and fair visw of tha siats ol the Compamny's sifers 2= at Decembs 11, 2024 and of the lo=a and othe comprehensae
ins=, the changes in equety and its cash flows for the yesr than sndsd.

Basis for Opinion

W conducted our sudit in accomdance with ntemational Standemds on Awditmg [545] as epplicabls n Palestan. Our responshiies
undar those standards are further describad in the Auditor's Resporsibifities for the Audit of the Financial Stetarmenrts section of our
report. We ars independant ol the Company n accordance with tha Intermational Etfecs Standards Boand for Acoountsmts' Cods of
Eihics for Professional Acoountants as adopted by the Instifuta of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Cods] =nd we have
fuffilled our obtss sthicel responsibities in sccordancs with tha Code. We believe that i audit svidance we have oblsnsd s
=ufficiznt and approprists to provics & basis for our opsmeon.

Information Other than the Fnancial Sisterments and Auditor's Report Thermon

Mamagamant 15 responaible for the other informabion. The other miormabon compness the informaton included o the @nnus eport
but does not ncluds the fmencial statements end our suditor's report thareon.

O opinion en the finencial steisments doss not cover the other miormation and we do not express any form of essurance
conclusion therson.

In conmection with owr sudit of the finencis sEtements, our responsibdty = 10 read ha other miomaton and, i doing so0, consdsr
wihethar the other information is matenally inconsistsnt with the finencad statements or our knowledge obteined o the auddl or
otherwise appesrs o b matenaly msstatad. If, based on the work we have performed. we copclude that thers 15 @ matenial
misstatems=n! of this othe infonmation, we are mquirsed to repor that fact We b=ee nothing ke /eport i this regand,

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Mamagamant 1= responsble tor the preparation and f=r presaniation of the financial statsmenis in eccordancs with the accounting
and reporting standards &= applcable in Pekistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XEX of 2017) and for such intemal
contrel 28 managsment detsminss @ necessary to enshle the preparstion of financiel stet=mants that as e from matenal
miesiatament whether dus o freud o soror

In preparing tha francial siatemente. mansgement B esponsibee for assessing the Company's abilty fo contmus as & going
conc=m, disclesing, as gppicabls, matters eisEd o going concem and wsing the going concsm bass of accounting unlsss
managamen sitter intends to bquidsts the Company or 1o cesss operetions, or has o realistic altemative but to do =a.

Board of directors == esponsible for oversesing the Company s firenoal sporting proosss.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(@) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

(b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity
with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

(¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the
Company's business; and

(d) in our opinion, no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Muhammad Imran.

[ M .
Lahore ﬁﬂr}‘ a ra hat

Date: 28 March 2025 BOD EBRAHIM & CO.
UDIN: AR202410131PgCN110Qb CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024
Amounts in Rs ‘000
Note 2024 2023
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized share capital 71 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 7.2 482,481 482,481
Capital reserves
Share premium 8 625,265 625,265
Capital and other receipts 8 8,036 8,036
633,301 633,301
Advance against issue of right shares 9 639,728 -
Revenue reserves
Unappropriated profit 8 3,379,866 3,970,531
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 10 5,592,919 3,387,216
10,728,295 8,473,529
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred liabilities 11 87,364 80,261
Long term financing 12 - _
Payable against purchase of land 13 - 39,951
Deferred tax liability - net 26 532,558 -
Lease liabilities against right-of-use assets 14 16,788 23,257
636,710 143,469
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 15 3,911,754 4,095,768
Contract liabilities 16 54,980 41,045
Current portion of long term liabilities 17 1,954,740 1,355,785
Accrued markup 18 34,306 43,078
Unpaid dividend 3,188 3,188
Unclaimed dividend 27,813 26,253
5,986,781 5,565,117
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 19 - -

17,351,786 14,182,115

Hibbos, (i

Mubbasher Omar Jawairia Hashmi
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024
Amounts in Rs ‘000
Note 2024 2023
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 20 11,337,464 8,646,357
Right-of-use assets 22 21,348 28,798
Intangible assets 23 26,687 58,691
Long term loans 24 102,731 74,549
Long term deposits and prepayments 25 3,242 4,850
Deferred tax asset - net 26 - 71,104
11,491,472 8,884,349
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores and spares 27 61,159 54,192
Stock in trade 28 2,179,150 2,488,274
Trade debts 29 1,805,471 1,362,045
Loans and advances 30 42,543 55,447
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 31 2,459 2,415
Other receivables 32 89,256 76,938
Taxation - net 33 623,126 283,571
Cash and bank balances 34 1,057,150 974,884
5,860,314 5,297,766
TOTAL ASSETS 17,351,786 14,182,115

The annexed notes from 1 to 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Hibbosy i

Mubbasher Omar Jawairia Hashmi
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Amounts in Rs ‘000

Note 2024 2023
Revenue 35 14,877,608 14,375,740
Sales tax and discounts 35 (5,774,283) (5,324,630)
Net revenue 9,103,325 9,051,110
Cost of sales 36 (7,205,775) (6,835,393)
Gross profit 1,897,550 2,215,717
Selling and distribution expenses 37 (1,268,833) (1,096,465)
Administrative and general expenses 38 (763,549) (509,306)
Net impairment losses on financial assets 39 (12,821) (26,668)
Operating (loss) / profit (147,653) 583,278
Finance cost 40 (337,605) (43,425)
Other charges 41 (26,501) (164,018)
Other income 42 129,320 31,355
(Loss) / Profit before levy and taxation (382,439) 407,190
Levy 43 (111,795) (176,627)
(Loss) / Profit before taxation (494,234) 230,563
Taxation 44 (170,171) (55,549)
(Loss) / Profit for the year (664,405) 175,014
(Loss) / Earnings per share - Basic and diluted (Rupees) 48 (13.77) 3.68

The annexed notes from 1 to 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Hibbos, (i

Mubbasher Omar Jawairia Hashmi
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Amounts in Rs ‘000

Note 2024 2023
(Loss) Profit for the year (664,405) 175,014
Other comprehensive income
Items that may not be reclassified subsequently to the profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability 11.3 44,974 72,601
Related tax impact (13,042) (21,054)
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and machinery 20.1 2,667,960 -
Related tax impact (420,449) -

2,279,443 51,547

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to the profit or loss - _
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,615,039 226,561

The annexed notes from 1 to 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Hibbos, L.

Mubbasher Omar
Chief Executive

Jawairia Hashmi
Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Amounts in Rs ‘000

Capital reserves

Revenue reserve

Issued, Advance Surplus on
subscribed Share Capital against . revaluation of
and paid-up premium  and other issue of U"approﬁ:'ated property, plant
Note capital receipts right shares profi and equipment Total

Balance as at January 01, 2023 464,433 156,006 196 - 3,665,683 3,465,503 7,751,821
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - - - - 175,014 - 175,014
Other comprehensive income - - - - 51,547 - 51,547

- - - - 226,561 - 226,561
Incremental depreciation charge during
the year - net of deferred tax - - - - 78,287 (78,287) -
Transactions with the owners of the Company
Increase in share capital due to right
shares issued during the year 7.5 18,048 - - - - - 18,048
Increase in share premium due to right
shares issued during the year 8.1 - 469,259 - - - - 469,259
Contribution received 8.2 - - 7,840 - - - 7,840

18,048 469,259 7,840 - 78,287 (78,287) 495,147

Balance as at December 31, 2023 482,481 625,265 8,036 - 3,970,531 3,387,216 8,473,529
Total comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the year - - - - (664,405) - (664,405)
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability - - - - 31,932 - 31,932
Revaluation surplus on property and plant - net of tax - - - - - 2,247,511 2.247.511

- - - - (632,473) 2,247,511 1,615,038
Incremental depreciation charge
during the year - net of deferred tax - - - - 41,808 41,808 -
Transactions with the owners of the Company
Share application money received
against right issue - - - 639,728 - - 639,728

- - - 639,728 41,808 (41,808) 639,728
Balance as at December 31, 2024 482,481 625,265 8,036 639,728 3,379,866 5,592,919 10,728,295

The annexed notes from 1 to 63 form an integral partof .____________.
these financial statements.

Hibbos, (i

Mubbasher Omar
Chief Executive

Jawairia Hashmi
Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Amounts in Rs ‘000

Note 2024 2023
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net cash flows from operating activities before working capital changes 45 372,727 955,060
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Stores and spares (6,967) (14,768)
Stock-in-trade 292,865 (758,159)
Trade debts (456,247) (125,041)
Loans and advances 19,654 6,031
Trade deposits and short term prepayments (44) 37,549
Other receivables 20,152 38,385

(130,587) (816,003)

(Decrease) / increase in current liabilities:
Trade and other payables, excluding employee benefits (157,188) 793,608
Contract liabilities 13,935 7,638
Net cash generated from operations 98,887 940,303
Employee benefits paid (24,314) (33,607)
Taxes paid (451,350) (451,891)
Interest paid (333,210) (158,897)
Net cash generated from operating activities (709,987) 295,908
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for capital expenditure (383,397) (1,830,555)
Addition to intangible assets - (46,713)
Payments against purchase of land (50,469) (50,469)
Long term loans (5,054) 2,895
Long term deposits and prepayments 1,608 620
Interest received - 17,631
Net cash used in investing activities (437,312) (1,906,591)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid - (392)
Long term loan received 600,000 1,000,000
Receipt against right shares issued 639,728 487,307
Contribution received - 7,840
Payment principal portion of lease liability against right-of-use assets (10,163) (9,454)
Net cash generated from financing activities 1,229,565 1,485,301
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 82,266 (125,382)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 974,884 1,100,266
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 34 1,057,150 974,884

The annexed notes from 1 to 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Hibbos, (i

Mubbasher Omar Jawairia Hashmi
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

1

3.1

3.2

3.3

a)

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Akzo Nobel Pakistan Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited Company registered under the Companies Ordinance,
1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The Company is primarily involved in the manufacturing and sale of paints and coatings.
The Company is a subsidiary of ICI Omicron B.V. which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Akzo Nobel N.V.

The Company was listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) up to August 9, 2020, and with effect from August 10, 2020
is an unlisted public limited Company.

GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF BUSINESS UNITS

The registered office of the Company is situated at 346, Ferozepur Road, Lahore. The manufacturing facility/factory of the
Company is located at the Faisalabad Industrial Estate Development and Management Company. The Company has other
regional offices at Karachi and Islamabad as well.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified
under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain classes of property,
plant and equipment (i.e. freehold land, buildings on freehold land and plant and machinery) that are stated at revalued
amounts, certain foreign currency translation adjustments and defined benefit asset / liability at fair value of plan asset less
present value of defined benefit obligation.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Company’s material accounting policies are stated in note 6. Not all of these material policies require the management
to make difficult, subjective or complex judgments or estimates. The following is intended to provide an understanding of
the policies the management considers critical because of their complexity, judgment of estimation involved in their
application and their impact on these financial statements. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. These judgments involve assumptions or estimates in respect of future events and the actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgments or complexity or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to these financial statements are as follows:

Defined benefit obligations
Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in note 11.11 to these financial statements for present value

of defined benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets. Any changes in these assumptions in future years might affect
gains and losses in those years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

b)

c)

d)

e)

9)

3.4

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets

The estimates for revalued amounts, if any, of different classes of property, plant and equipment, are based on valuations
performed by an external professional valuation expert after every five years or earlier if necessary and on
recommendations of technical teams of the Company. The said recommendations also include estimates with respect to
residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. Further, the Company reviews the
value of the assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. The future cash flows used in the impairment testing of
assets is based on management's best estimates which may change in future periods. Any change in the estimates in
future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets with a corresponding effect on the depreciation / amortization charge and impairment.

Provision for taxation

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and the decisions taken by appellate authorities. Instances
where the Company's views differ from the view taken by income tax department at the assessment stage and where the
Company considers that its views on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as
contingent liabilities.

The tax period of the Company is the same as its accounting year. The income tax assessments of the Company up to and
including tax year 2023 have been completed under the provisions of section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
except for the cases as mentioned in note 19.1.1 to 19.1.13.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits to the extent
that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax
credits can be utilized. The recoverability of deferred tax assets are analyzed at each reporting period end and adjusted if
considered necessary with a corresponding effect on deferred tax charge/income for the period.

Stock-in-trade and stores and spares
The net realizable value of stock-in-trade and stores and spares are assessed for any diminution in their respective values.
Any change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of stock-in-trade and stores and spares with
the corresponding effect of the impairment. Net realizable value is determined with respect to estimated selling price less
estimated expenditure to make the sale.

Impairment of trade debts and contract assets

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade debts and contract assets.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of time before the reporting date and the
corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
Provision for discounts

The Company offers various forms of discounts to its customers based on approved promotion schemes. In this regard,
the Company maintains a provision for discounts based on the sales that satisfy the promotion criteria at the reporting date.
Adjustment of the same is made upon claim by the respective customers. Charges and reversal thereof are recognized in
the statement of profit or loss account.

Lease term of right-of-use asset and lease liability

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to
exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination options)
are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is also the Company's functional currency.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

4

4.1

4.2

APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED
ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS

New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended December

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended December 31, 2024. These
standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or did not have significant
impact on the financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective date (annual periods
beginning on or after)

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Supplier finance arrangements January 01, 2024

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a seller-lessee
subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions January 01, 2024

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classification
of liabilities as current or non-current January 01, 2024

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Non-current
liabilities with covenants January 01, 2024

Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance arrangements January 01, 2024

The Company adopted the narrow-scope amendments to the International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1, Presentation of
Financial Statements which have been effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2023.
Although the amendments did not result in any changes to accounting policy themselves.

The amendments aim to make accounting policy disclosures more informative by replacing the requirement to disclose
‘significant accounting policies’ with ‘material accounting policy information’. The amendments also provide guidance
under what circumstance, the accounting policy information is likely to be considered material and therefore requiring
disclosure.

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after
the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the
Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than
certain additional disclosures.
Effective date (annual periods
beginning on or after)

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Amendments regarding the
classification and measurement of financial instruments January 01, 2026

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments regarding the classification
and measurement of financial instruments January 01, 2026
Amendments to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' - Lack of Exchangeability January 01, 2026

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Amendments regarding January 01, 2026
nature-dependent electricity contracts that are often structured as power purchase agreements (PPAs)

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments regarding January 01, 2026
nature-dependent electricity contracts that are often structured as power purchase agreements (PPAs)

IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts' January 01, 2026

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs and |ASs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Amaounis in As ‘000

6.1

6.2

IFRS 1 'Fest-tme Adopton of Intamationsl Financial Reporting Standards’ hes been mseed by ASE sfactive from July 07,
2008, Howesvae, it has not been sdopted y=t locally by Becusitiss and Escharge Commission of Pakistsn [SECP)

IFAS 1B Pressnteton and Dischesures m Francial Statements’ has been issusd by ASE effsctvs from famuary (1, 2027,
Howeses, it has not besn adopled yet locally by Securitiss and Exchange Commission of Pakisten [(SECH),

IFRS 19 ‘Subsidiaries withou! Public Accountsbility: Disclosuras’ haz besn issued by 1ASE effactiva from January 01. 2027,
Howrees, it hias not b==n adoplad vl loally by Seounities and Exchangs Commissicn of Pakistan (SECH).

IFRS 17 - ‘Irsurencs contracts’ has besn nofified by ke 1ASE to be sfiective for annual periods beginning on or after
JamaEry 1, 2033, However SECP has notified the timsfams for the adoption of IFRS - 17 wiech will be edogt=d by Jamsry
0%, 2026,

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND RECLASSIFICATION

During the year, the Institute of Craressd Accountents of Pakistan (ICAP) has withdrean Technical Ralzass 27 'TAS 12,
Incoms Tavss (Aevsed 20121 and (=sued the AS 12 Application Guidancs on Accounting for Mimmum Tases &nd Final

Tas=s' [ihe Guidsnos]l. Accomdingly, in accordanca wrih the Guidance, tha Company has changed its sccounting policy o
recognises: rrinimusTs and final tewes as Levy’ under LAS 37 “Provisions, Confingsnt Lishites end Contngent Asssts™ which

wers oreviously baing recognisad sa come tae’

The Company has sccountsd for the effects of thess changess in accounting policy retrospactvely under 1AS 8 “Accounting
Policies, Changes n Acoountmg Estemates and Eroms™ and resulted in the followng reclessificetion of comesponding
figures Tha siacts of reclessilication are 8= follows

Had there been no chamge: mpact of change After incarporating effecta
in accounting policy in accouniing palkcy of change in accounting poloy
Az ot Decomber 31, 5034
Elfert on atabemesit of prolif or oss
Profit before sicare tax 407,180 {17882 23l aed
Tasalion Fa= R | {1 TREIT 1EE 5
Profit after tazation 175,014 . 17014

The relstad changes o tha staizment of cash flows with respect fo the amount of profit befors taxshon havs keen mads as
well. Thee iz no impact on peodit atter e and esmings per shae. basic and dildzd.
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The prncipl accounting policies applied in ihe pesentation of the=s frmancial statsments am set out bl Thess poboss
have besn consstentty spplied to all i years pressmied ' thees fmancial stel=ments.

Stores ond spares

Stores and spares ame stated 8 the lowesr of cost @nd net realoebls vehws, Cost 5 determined uwsing weghtsd average
method. tems in franst ae valued 2t 8 cost, comprisng imeoice valus phs other chamss inveced thereom up 1o the
reporting dats

Stoch-in-treds

Stock-m-trede s valued & lowsr of weighted averege cost and estmated net resirable vl

Comt comprizes =il posts of purchess, coste of comersion sn other costs incurred @ bringing the mventones o their
presand locafion end condition.

Aaw matsrals Weightad sversoe cost.
Work-in-proce=s and finizhad goods Cao=l of direct meterals, lsbour and approprists menufactuneg overheeds.

Nt realizsble valus mignifiss he estimaiad s=ng pics m the onary cowss of busmess l2es net estmated cosis of
comphstion and estimsted costs necssaary to maks the sals_

Stock-n-transs 1 valued st 5 cost. comprming imvoecs value phe other chargss imeoced tharson
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.5.1

6.5.2

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land, buildings on freehold land and plant and machinery) are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Freehold land is stated at revalued amount,
buildings on freehold land and plant and machinery are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost of certain property, plant and equipment comprises historical cost, exchange
differences recognized, cost of exchange risk cover in respect of foreign currency loans obtained, if any, for the acquisition
of property, plant and equipment up to the commencement of commercial production and borrowing cost.

Depreciation charge is based on the straight-line method whereby the cost or revalued amount of an asset is written off to
the statement of profit and oss account over its estimated useful life after taking into account the residual value, if material.
Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use and on disposals up to the
month preceding the disposal. The rate of depreciation is specified in note 20 to these financial statements.

The residual value, depreciation method and the useful lives of each part of property, plant and equipment that is significant
in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is credited to the surplus on revaluation account. To the extent of
the incremental depreciation charged on the revalued assets, the related surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment (net of deferred tax) is transferred directly to unappropriated profit, in the statement of changes in equity.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Subsequent
improvements to the assets are capitalized when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Assets replaced, if any, are derecognized.

Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the statement of profit or loss, and the related surplus/deficit on
revaluation of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to retained earnings (unappropriated profits) through the
statement of changes in equity.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any, and consists of expenditure incurred, advances
made and other costs directly attributable to operating fixed assets in the course of their construction and installation. Cost
also includes applicable borrowing costs. Transfers are made to relevant operating fixed assets category as and when
assets are available for use intended by the management.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with a finite useful life, such as certain software, licenses (including software licenses, etc.) and property
rights, are capitalized initially at cost and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset
to which it relates. All other expenditures are recognized in the statement of profit or loss account as incurred.

Amortization is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value, if any. Amortization is recognized in the statement of
profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets. Amortization methods,
useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted, if appropriate. The rate of amortization is
specified in note 23 to these financial statements.

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”),
- at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), or
- at amortised cost.
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i)

i)

b)

The Company determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition. The classification of instruments (other
than equity instruments) is driven by the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and their contractual
cash flow characteristics.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss, or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.
Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date i.e. the date on which the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in statement of profit and loss account.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
Solely Payment of Principal and Interest (SPPI).

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and the
cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt
instruments:

At amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using
the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in the statement of profit
or loss and presented in other income/(other charges), together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit and loss account, if significant. The Company measures its
trade debts and other receivables at amortised cost because it meets the criteria of the SPPI test.

At FVOCI

Assets that are held for both collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to the statement of profit or loss and recognised in other
income/(other charges). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other income/(other charges).

At FVPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in statement of profit or loss and presented net within other
income/(other charges) in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company's management has elected
to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to statement of profit or loss account following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in statement of profit and loss as other income when the Company’s right to receive
payments is established.
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Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in other income/(other charges) in the statement of
profit or loss, as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its financial assets.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade
debts, the Company applies IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure the expected credit losses (loss allowance) which uses
a life time expected loss allowance to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables while general 3-stage
approach for loans, deposits, other receivables and bank balances i.e. to measure ECL through loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL if credit risk on a financial instrument or a group of financial instruments has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude
of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information (adjusted for factors that are specific to the
counterparty, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate). As for the exposure at default for
financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date. Loss allowances are forward
looking, based on 12 month expected credit losses where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk rating,
otherwise allowances are based on lifetime expected losses.

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. The probability is determined by the risk of
default which is applied to the cash flow estimates. In the absence of a change in credit rating, allowances are recognised
when there is reduction in the net present value of expected cash flows. On a significant increase in credit risk, allowances
are recognised without a change in the expected cash flows, although typically expected cash flows do also change; and
expected credit losses are rebased from 12 month to lifetime expectations.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information.

The following indicators are considered while assessing credit risk:

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant change to the debtor’s ability to meet its obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the debtor;
- significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor; and

- significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-party guarantees, if
applicable.

The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Company, in full (without taking into account any collaterals held by the Company).

Irrespective of the above analysis, in case of trade debts, the Company considers that default has occurred when a debt is
more than 360 days past due, unless the Company has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:
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6.8

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

- the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

The Company recognises life time ECL on trade debts, using the simplified approach. The measurement of ECL reflects:
- an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes; and

- reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Trade debts with individually significant balance are separately assessed for ECL measurement. All other receivables are
grouped and assessed collectively based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected credit
losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix approach based on the Company’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where
appropriate.

Where lifetime ECL is measured on a collective basis to cater for cases where evidence of significant increases in credit risk
at the individual instrument level may not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped on the nature of financial
instruments; past-due status; nature, size and industry of debtors; and external credit ratings where available. The grouping
is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

The Company recognizes an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss account for financial assets with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for investments in debt
instruments that are measured at FVOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the
statement of financial position. The Company writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all
practical recovery efforts and has concluded there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The assessment of no
reasonable expectation of recovery is based on unavailability of debtor’s sources of income or assets to generate sufficient
future cash flows to repay the amount. The Company may write-off financial assets that are still subject to enforcement
activity. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off will result in impairment gains.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and
de-recognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The Company
derecognizes financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial liabilities are discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss account.

All financial liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given and received
respectively. These financial liabilities are subsequently measured at FVPL or at amortised cost, as the case may be.
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, unless they are required to be measured at FVPL (such as instruments
held for trading or derivatives) or the Company has opted to measure them at FVPL. The particular recognition methods
adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item. Where management has opted to
recognise a financial liability at FVPL, any changes associated with the Company’s own credit risk will be recognized in
other comprehensive income/(loss). Currently, there are no financial liabilities designated at FVPL.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognized at fair value on the statement of financial position. Fair values are derived
from market prices and quotes from dealers and brokers, or are estimated using observable market inputs. When
determining fair values, credit risk for our contract party, as well as for the Company, is taken into account. Changes in the
fair value are recognized in the statement of profit and loss account, unless cash flow hedge accounting or net investment
hedge accounting is applied. In those cases, the effective part of the fair value changes is deferred in the statement of other
comprehensive income and released to the related specific lines in the statement of profit or loss account, or the statement
of financial position at the same time as the hedged item.
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6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost and comprise of cash in hand,
cash at banks on current, saving and deposit accounts and other short term highly liquid instruments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in values. Cash equivalents are
held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purpose.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax asset, are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows
of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit, or CGU”).

The Company’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is an indication that a corporate asset may
be impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset belongs. An impairment
loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognized in the profit and loss account.

Impairment loss recognized in prior periods is assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates that are used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment
loss had been recognized.

Share capital (ordinary shares)

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are
recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Staff retirement benefits

The Company’s retirement benefit plans comprise of provident funds, pensions, gratuity schemes and a medical scheme
for eligible retired employees.

Defined benefit plans

The Company operates a funded pension scheme and a funded gratuity scheme for management staff. The pension and
gratuity schemes are salary schemes providing pension and lump sums, respectively. Pension and gratuity schemes for
management staff are invested through two approved trust funds. The Company also operates gratuity scheme for
non-management staff and the pensioners' medical scheme which are unfunded. The pension and gratuity plans are final
salary plans. The pensioners' medical plan reimburses actual medical expenses to pensioners as per entitlement. The
Company recognizes expense in accordance with IAS 19 "Employee Benefits".

All past service costs are recognized at earlier of when the amendment or curtailment occurs and when the Company has
recognized related restructuring or termination benefits.
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6.16

6.17

6.18

The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and
deducting the fair value of any plan assets. The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company,
the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the
plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is
given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets
(excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other
comprehensive income. The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability
(asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses
related to defined benefit plans are recognized in the statement of profit or loss account.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past
service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss account. The
Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Defined contribution plans

The Company operates two registered contributory provident funds for its permanent staff and a registered defined
contribution superannuation fund for its management staff, who have either opted for this fund by July 31, 2004 or have
joined the Company after April 30, 2004. The said funds were transferred from ICl Pakistan Limited pursuant to the Scheme
of demerger in 2011. In addition to this, the Company also provides group insurance to all its employees.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided. Prepaid
contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

Provisions

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as
a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. The amount recognized as a provision reflects the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed when:

- thereis a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or

- there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contract with customers primarily includes sale of paints and coatings. Revenue is recognized when
performance obligations are satisfied by transferring control of a good or service to a customer, either at a point in time or

over time of an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

Revenue is recognised in accordance with the aforementioned principle by applying the following steps:
i) Identify the contract with a customer.

i) Identify the performance obligation in the contract.

iiij Determine the transaction price of the contract.

iv) Allocate the transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations in the contract.

v) Recognise the revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.
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Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the Company satisfies performance obligations
by transferring the promised goods or services to its customers. Any bundled goods or services that are distinct are
separately recognized, and any discounts or rebates on the contract price are generally allocated to the separate elements.

(a) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customer (i.e. after
obtaining customer acknowledgment at the time of delivery of goods). Although the transfer of risks and rewards is not the
only criterion to be considered to determine whether control over the goods has transferred, it is in most situations
considered to be the main indicator of the customer’s ability to direct the use of and obtain the benefits from the asset and
largely also coincides with the physical transfer of the goods and the obligation of the customer to pay. In case of expected
returns, no revenue is recognized for such products.

Variable considerations, including among others rebates and discounts are accrued for as performance obligations are
satisfied and revenue is recognized. Variable considerations are only recognized when it is highly probable that it is not
subject to significant reversal.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the goods sold, net of returns,
discounts and sales tax.

(b) Equipment provided to customers
The Company at times also provides tinting machines to its customers at the start of a paint delivery contract.
Under IFRS 15, the delivery of such assets qualifies as a separate performance obligation. Revenue can only be recognized
at the moment of transfer of such assets, when there is an agreed sales price or when there is a binding take-or-pay
commitment for a minimum quantity of paint to be acquired by the customer.

(c) Other
- Profit on short-term bank deposits is accounted for on a time-apportioned basis using the effective interest rate method.
- Financial income on funds invested, mark-up / interest income on lendings made by the Company and amortization
gains on interest free loans given to staff is accounted for using the effective interest rate method.

6.19 Financial expenses

Financial expenses are recognized using the effective interest rate method and comprise of mark-up / interest expense on
borrowings, along with amortization losses on interest free loans given to staff.

6.20 Operating lease / ljarah contracts

Leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset i.e. retained
by the lessor, are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases / ijarah contracts (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the statement of profit or loss account on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

6.21 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing
cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs,
if any, are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.

6.22 Foreign currency translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees, at the foreign exchange rates prevailing at
the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the foreign
exchange rates at the reporting date. Exchange differences i.e. gains / losses, are taken to the statement of profit or loss
account.

6.23 Taxation
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit or

loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income or below
equity, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income or below equity respectively.



Annual Report 2024 F 20
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

a)
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6.24

6.25

6.26

6.27

6.28

Current

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law for
taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the
profit for the year, if enacted or substantially enacted. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where
considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such
years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the statement of financial position liability method in respect of all temporary differences
arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in these financial statements and the corre-
sponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
shall be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the
statement of profit and loss account, except in the case of items credited or charged to equity in which case it is included
in equity.

The Company recognizes a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the foreseeable future
will be available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. Further, the Company recognizes deferred tax asset / liability on deficit
/ surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment which is adjusted against the related deficit / surplus.

Levy

The amount calculated on taxable income using the notified tax rate is recognized as current income tax expense for the
year in the statement of profit or loss. Any excess of expected income tax paid or payable for the year under the Ordinance
over the amount designated as current income tax for the year, is then recognized as a levy.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive poten-
tial ordinary shares.

Dividend and other appropriations

Dividend is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is declared and approved. Appropriations of profit are reflected
in the statement of changes in equity in the period in which such appropriations are approved.

Related party transactions

Transactions with related parties are carried out on mutually agreed terms and conditions.
Leases

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of
the lease term, the recognized right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment testing at each reporting date.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
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A8 2B 183 48 DAl 1Y AR LR 482 481

[T Omicren B fwhich = & wholly owned subsidiary of kzo Nobsl N ) hofds 49, 768 437 [47,411,3085) ordinary sharss of
Re 10- =ach repressmiing 88 30% B8 7% | of the shars capitsl of the Compamy.

In the ye=r 2020 1G] Cmicron BY initiated the process of buymg (hs shares from the markst to comply with requiremsnts
of delisting reguistions. Afier the mequisdes shasholding was puchssad by 161 Cimécron BV and i accordance with the
notice: PEXMW-886) dated July 26 2020 from Pelostsn Stock Evchange (PSX), the Company has been dalisted from F5X
with effect from Acgusd 10, 3020

Thare 18 ne sharsholder agresmeant for wobing nghits, board salechon, nghts of first miussl and block wabng.

Movement of share capital I= as follows:

Haole 2l Fu k]
Dypemng balance B2 40 il 433
Flight shaies (s i duirng the year i - 10,048

Ciosmg bxtancs B2 40 4B ART




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Amounis i As ‘000

T.0

T.T

Bl

i

iy

The Company hes Eswed nght shares, haing a face value of Ao 10, & a price of Bs. 270/ including premium) per share,
s appmved by the Board of Oirectors of the Company vids it esolutions datsd Mech 34, 2000,

Share Emed othar than osh mpressnts issuance against assets pursuant 1o the Schems of demengee.

SHARE PREMIUM
Camidtal reserves
- SHEre prErmalm i [ Foa e, 1] 25 285
Camttal and other recmsts $ [ Kis ] i)
33,30 S a0t
Hevenue reseree
- Limnpproprinis- orofi 33To BET 3 O 5N
0068 i 603 RAZ
Movement of share premium = a2 follows
Opening batance 11 [ Fahel ] 1568 D06
Hight sfizres lysued g e yer T8 & AR FE
Cizzing balancs D5, D5 625 A6

Thes includss amount which hass been affocatsd and transfersd (o the Company pursuant to the Schema of dsmemgsrn. This
resarve can be utilized by the Company only for the purposes specified in s=ction B1(2) of the Companies Act. 2017.

Movement of capital and other receapts: = e follows:

Op=ming batance 2831 W] AR
Coninbution recaived dusing the e a2z - r.Bap
Clirzing balance B0 036

Capits| rec=ipts mpresent the amount eceived from vanous overssas Akoo Mobsl companiss for the pechas= of propsry,
plant and squipmant. Tha remiting cmmnmshmmdmn 1o their repayments. The smowm has been allocated and
transiemed 1o the Company pursusnt to Scheme of dememer.

Ths repressnis ewcess amount paid Dy pasrend company fo the broksr for delsting which has besn recewsd by the
Comparry on bahelf of parent company and treatsd ss squity oontrisutien snd parent company bas wsheed of iks nghts

ADYANGE AGAINST ISSUE OF RIGHT SHARES

Share deposH crorey 21 838, Tag -

Thie represents subschption money received spanst ssce of rght shares from vsnows: sharsholders ncheding the parent
company. Tha Compasmy has Eswed right shares, having a fece vakes of Az 10, 8t B price of Re 270/ fincluding pramium)
per share, a8 approved by the Board of Directors of the Company vids its esolutions daisd Ocinbsr 24, 2024, Tha shass
heve baan alicttsd subsequant to the eporting pencd
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Amounis in As ‘000

1] SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
This repressnts surplus snsing on recsstion of freshold land . buildinos on freshold fsnd snd plent sand machineny,

Balance at begmmung of fhe yaar A307 20 3 A5 RO
Ae=vaiustion durng the y=ar - nel of d=ismsd & 2,247 811 -
Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of incremental depreciation duning the year

- net of defared = jd 1 BEE [TE.24T)
Balance at snd of the yesr Braz e 137

11 The surples on evalustion of proparty, plant and squipment is ned amilable for disinbubion fo the sharsholders 0 eccor-
dance with saction 241 of the Comg@znies Act. 2017

b (i8] Freshold |mnd, basidings on freshaold land and plant and machineny have besn camed & revalusd smounts datsemined by
professionzl valuers (feved 1 messurement] bassd on their ssssssment of the values =0 disclosad. The valuationz ars
conductad by an indspendent vakustion sepsrt appointed by the Company. Tha vmlustion sxpart ussd & marks! bassd
approach fo @mve at the fair value of the Compsmy's Sad and building. The valustion was detemmnsd by =ference o
curram markat valus of the similer propertes |/ essstzs. The most significant inpd into thea valuation epproach s prce per
acr= for l2md, price per square foot for buildings and pressnt opsrational condiion =nd ags of plert and mechinsey respec-
tivaly, Tha effect of changes in the unbbssrvabls nputs esed in tha vakstions cannot be detsrmmirsd with cetainty, sccord-
ingly & gualtatve disclosure of sensfity has mol besn presantsd in these financia! stelements. Reconciiation of les! threa
has besn declossd m ressant note and there = no mEnsfer betwsan far wlue Eeachy

k] DEFERAED LIABILITIES

1.1 The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are:
Mon-curreni liabilities
Unfunded - recognized in delerred Eahility:
- Gratutty fund - non-managsment 8,08 12007
- Post retirement medical benefits TR 245 En 3504
1.4 g7 264 2 2=
Current lahilities
Funded - payabls to amployess retrament benafit fund:
- Pension fund - managsment ALY 15,065
- Gratuity fund - managemend =+ =
T687 10 505
W 100227
Current assats
Fundsd - mceivabis from employ=s rstiemant E=nef fund:
- Gratuity hund - menagement TRE (56, 021) [24,451)
1L.L.1  The dlosing balanca ol fundsd - payable to employes retvement bensfit fund has esulted into ess=t End has bean shown

undsr athier reosrvahles.
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e T MLIET H_TTH k-5 ALIET] [VL3ET] TR FELIERE L1 [~ #; 1J] Ll
:F; FLEN LT VT T LE-- =3 [RES 0| =y L (RS 2] BT ame - B s 4 =N
ST m e e . i=mmr -8 HEATY [ s ] 4241 S HLUE TR 4TS =m -
nr e - s
Exmey @ ey o e e H 3T ==y — dTE T - anL g .= T TN =D
S St mbnr Fal i L1 -] = s - B =8 m e L e 41 I3
Lorwrizsire by e Carpry L LI ] i Bin | - L& k] B | Rl | T =1}
el Lol B = 1] - - - - - = e el
B - [FLEs ] L% - I = HET [Soalon TN R L - SR
il el L ] LR ] T L - s TETH nrI. N nra
e s — ]
[ SR R (e rap— =TT LI LA - LET T = Jmha dim i
LR B
Cosrryrad s LTI TEEIN Ly - 1K TET 134 T 1ET = U
e srwTs o Y ErE R [ -] L =] Rl LEE
Tl b=y — i A BTH et r & =TI I L6 A4S TS
Fouhy rmr= i3 f_E=_ BT VT S [ - ] p - LT
- T T L L LR oimm oo & w11
L ] s Imn e - N T T T T e R =
119 Tha expecied in statement of profit or loss pertaining to pension fund, gratuity fund snd urfunded schemes for the

year ending December 31, 2026 i= Az 2.3 million, Rz, 1001 millon and B=. 1108 millon, respectively,
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

11.10 Government bonds, corporate bonds, mutual funds and shares are valued at quoted market prices and are level 1. Cash is
also Level 1. The funds do not have any investment in the securities issued by the Company or any associated companies.
Pension and Management staff gratuity funds are invested through approved trust funds while non-management staff
grtauity is a book reserve plan.

11.11  The principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were as follows:

2024 2023
Discount rate 12.00% 16.50%
Future salary increases - Management staff 12.50% 17.00%
Future salary increases - Non-management staff 9.75% 14.25%
Future pension increases 7.75% 12.00%
Medical cost trend 6.75% 11.00%
As at December 31, 2024, the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 9.7 years (December 31,
2023: 8.7 years).
Plan duration of defined benefit obligation:
Pension 8.7 years 6.6 years
Gratuity - Management staff 8.6 years 9.1 years
Gratuity - Non-management staff 3.9 years 3.3 years
Pensioners' medical plan 14.9 years 15.0 years

11.12 The plans expose the Company to the actuarial risks such as:

Salary risks
The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is higher than what was assumed. Since the benefit is
calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount increases similarly.
Mortality / withdrawal risks
The risks that the actual mortality / withdrawal experiences are different. The effect depends upon beneficiaries' service / age
distribution and the benefit.
Investment risks
The risk of the investment underperforming and not being sufficient to meet the liabilities. This is managed by formulating an
investment policy and guidelines based on which investments are made after obtaining approval of trustees of funds.

11.13 In case of the funded plans, it is ensured that the long-term investments are in line with the obligation under the retirement
benefit plan. Duration and the expected yield of the investments are matched with the expected cash outflows arising from
the retirement benefit plan obligations. The process used to manage its risks has not been changed from previous periods.
Investments are well diversified and composition of the plan assets is disclosed in note 11.8 to the financial statements.

11.14 Normal retirement age is 60 years for Non-Management Staff. Normal retirement age for Management Staff depends on date
of joining Management Staff. If joining date is before February 1988, normal retirement age is 58 years for men and 55 years
for women. If joining date falls between February 1, 1988 and February 24, 2013, it is 60 years extendable to 62 years by the
mutual consent of employee and Company. If joining date is February 25, 2013 or later, normal retirement age is 62 years.
Currently the Company has the following plans:

a) Pension

Pension scheme entitles the members to pension, subject to the conditions laid down in the rules, on reaching the normal
retirement age, disability, early retirement or death in which case the surviving spouse and the children under the age of 25
shall be entitled.

Retirement benefit is a pension of 1.25% of final gross salary for each year of service less actuarial equivalent of any gratuity,
if service is at least 10 years. Members may commute up to one-half of pension and the trustees may commute the balance.

The Trustees increase pensions in payment on an ad-hoc basis to provide some relief against inflation. The plan guarantees
a minimum annual increase of 6%.



gl Flagaar S0k F

1]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Amoants in Rs ‘000

b)

1116

Tar

Gratuity

Gretuty schemes entitles the msnbars to gretuly on esignation, t=rminston, etiemeant, =arly etiemant, stenchmant,
cagth and dismi=sal bassd on the Compamy’s Sanice Fulas, The Company maniains 2 sepamate gretuty fund for mansge-
meni &nd mon-mansgement stefi

Gratuty = hesed on the last month's basic salary for esch year of ssnce.

Pensioners' madical plan

Tha pemionars’ medical plan reimbursss medice expenss o retFess, their wies and widows snd widiows of managemnsnt
sisfl smployess who died in ssvice. Bensfits are imidsd io & moimum smount depending on grads &t rebiremsnt.

The Pension and Gratuity managament plans are fully funded. The funds are legafly separais from the Company and ars
recognized by the Commissionsr of Incoms Tax under Incoms Tex Rules, 2002, Menb=r do not contnibuls to the pension
snd gratuity unds. The Company contributss a1 ratss sdvissd by the sciuary, The condributEons are sgual to currsnl senmce
cost with edjustment for sny deficid i thers s a surplus. the Company tskes 8 contribution holiday

Senzitivity enalysis

Asasonehly possible chenges 3 the reporting dats to on= of the elsvant acfusrial sssumptions, holdmg other sssmptions
constant, would Have affscted ths defined benslit obligation by the amounts shown beloa:

imipact an defined benefit obligation

Changein  Increassin = Docresss in
gssumption assumpiion  assumption

TLIR

1.8

Desoount rata 3.50% (17.0963) 18,345
Ssiary growth mkE i B 8,630 (2.209)
Penaion growth rats 050% 11373 %835
Medical cost trend rate 0 50% 5,58 iS5, 083

i [ife anpsctancy ncreasss by | year the ohiigation moressss by Be. 8357 1mlion,

The mpact of changas in financial assumptions has bean determinad by remlustion of the obligatons on differsnt ==t of
assumphone. The impact of increass n longeyity has bean calculatad on the agoregats for each class of amployees.

The Company confributed Rz 26829 milllon 2023 As. 24 26 million] and Rs. 810 million (2023 Rz 787 million) fo the
provident fund and the definsd contnbuton supsrsnmeation fund espectively during the year

Irvvextments out of fund have baen mads in acoormance with the provisions ol saction 218 of the Companies At 2017 and
the conditons spscified thereundar

Mots 2024 2023
12 LONG TERM FINANCING

Secured:

Lanking Companiss

Citibank N.A
Cp=ning balanes 1,200,000 0%, 500
Ariridion a0o.0oa T O
Principal 121 1,200,000 1200 D6
L===" Current portion shoem undar curent lishilities T (R E et ] 11300 Do)

29

The Company has obamed thes losn under long t=m nance Eoility from Ciobank MLA, Karschs with the imit of B=. 2250
rmaticn. This fmance & secured sgainst SBLE from the parent company covenng 100% of the tecility amount. Akezo Robsl

N hes mmed unoonditionally end irevocably guarantsss by wey of an own and indspasndsnt ohligetion and not &5 sursty
or jaint and several to and in Bvour of Citibank Furops Pic, Nethseizrds Branch for masmmum smount of R=. 2 250 millicn

apgainst term fmance facility svalled by e Compamy. The financs = obtased o mes! the bng term funding requirsmsnts
off the Comparmy. It cames mark up af the etz 3 months KIBOR ples 0.75% per annum payabls quarterly. The loan was
payaEnle i lumpsum basis on Decembar 15, 2024 This y==i. the company hes oblained an additonal trenche of R 00
million and the loan has been extendad till December 15, 2025,
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Amounts i Rs ‘000

kiots o4 ik
13 PAYABLE AGAINST PURCHASE OF LAND
Balsnoes a= at 01 Janusry 60420 128573
Urreninding of discowu | B30 | 12876
Payment during the y= S L)
(a2 140y [37_8B53)
131 4aam 00,420
Less: current portaon of Ebiies against pechess of land &t year-and 7 [48.771) (o0 458
Maon-current lishilities sgsinst purchass of Bnd at year and - 30851
131 The Company has shified ds menufactunng pient from Lahore o Fesalabed. For thal purpess, the Company had scquirsd
land of 24 scres smounting to Ae. 297 8468 million from Fesalsbad indusinal Esteie Deesiopment and Manegsmeant
Compzny (FIEDMC), Down payrment of As. 35 656 milion was ped by the Company and e remaining =mount of R
201 275 milon was o bs paid o 16 equal inlsrsst free quarterly installments stesting froen February 2022 and the last
instalimant will b= paad in October 2085 The payable has bsen recognized &t amorizsd cost using sffective merest mie of
11.00% per =mum.
14 LEASE LIABILITIES ACAINST RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
Leazs lishilities =1 21 January 01. 28,573 4.3M
Addition dunng the year - 20,30
Interest ypense dunmg the year 4,847 3 355
Paymant during the yest {10,783 [H,454)
23,257 28573
Less Current porticn of l=sa linbilities against right-of-wss asssts 17 {6, 4464K) [6.518]
MNon-currant keass lisbilities spamst nght-of-use sessts 14,708 i Bl
141 Commitmants in relation fo leases recognised under IFRS 16 sgainst Aght-of-use assets are payable as follows:
Payable nol lstzr than one yves 020 10,164
Payshle latar than ons pear but ned Leter than five yess 20 042 24 Qg
6,062 40,125
Future france cosl {6,706 i11.553

Tots |sase lshiiites against right-of-uze ass=ts 2257 28573
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Amounts in As ‘000
kots 24 2023
15 TRADE AND OTHER PAYARLES
Crediirs
- Aetzted partes 151 1 B, 138 1,340,377
- il 1.0 4 Dns 1,407 55
2 800, 1ad 2647 236
Pryailty ami tectwmical serios L is52 5 B 577, 68
Accrised lintsidies 2085,320 e e
Fietemdion monery 165, a8 352 645
Worken' Profil Pariopaton Fund 153 . 18754
Weorkers' Wellam Fund i5.& - 54178
Withholding tas payable to Gowernmen a7.4T3 18134
Payatie 1o o yes retrmmnT erfil fumds A Taar R
Serumty depoite 158 129 2D 1G5 85
Sales 1oy Adjsiste Bl
Crhern 2B 14,971
1,251,810 R
3811, 784 4 005 TN
151 Tha nchuses balsnces dus bo Iobowing relaled paries
Adcrr Mobel MY Tid 358 ai5 134
IC1 Dirrucier B - 4 T
Pirturas e BA R me 14L& B2
Irlsiriadicre Bair Meiferiands ig 2?7 JB5H3
Az Mobel Baies &rabia . 5008
Alcrn Nabel UAE Pamba LLC - TST
Adcrn Mobel Purts Vieinam 78,30 203
Al Mobed Painds Malayum 1,804 1,808
Al Nobel Seoapom Pe Leg o=t 157,407
Alzrn Mobed Decomtrne Coatings (Mataysiad 518 528
Al Mokl indusirial Coatings 3% 38t 11ABTT
Irimrriatiorel Porrs 11T 5a5
Abrn Mobel Paims [Thalland] Lendsd B 081 ELRIA
PT Alkrn Mobel Car Pafirishes indonesis - JE D08
Int=ristions Fam AD e 280
15A8 13 1 1anITT
152 Foyalty amd techinical servcs fes
This mchueles meypaity and tectnicel s=rvice fes poyatie b the ollowang relafted gy
Ak Mote| Coatings rtevriatenal B Y o2 ogr a4 g
153 Waorkers' Prodit Particmation Fumd
Halnroe gt tsqrning of the year T8 THE A2 169
Migecaton jor e yaar - 21 852
[rriere=y o funds A61 155
Other atig imirretits 2108
Paymamts made b tie i diring e ye [ER 24 g
Ealares &) =nd of s vear = 0 ThE
154 Workers' Wallaes Fund B4 18 A5 410
Balnrde af begirming of the peer = LTy
Allocataon far fhe y=ar (15258 -
Adjimdmpr mads during ihe yeer Fi 9 .
Pongreerds made o S hued duneg Be v - =4 1TE

Elalaiwee al s al the year
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Amaounis in Rs ‘000
1585 Thesa represant secunty deposits recaived from customars. Thess ars repayable on cancallabon of cistnbufion conbracts
with cusiomers and cannot be utileed for the purpose of the busnsss. These haes been kept In ssparsis bank Ecoount in
mccordence wiih the requiements of the secton 217 of the Companiss 2c1. 2017,
18 CONTRACT LIARILITIES
Advances recenved from customer are recognised as revenus when performance obligation in accordanca with the policy as
described o note £ 18 & setisfied Following = 2 movement in the balancs with respedt fo contect lishilities duang the year
Hotn 2024 2023
Urmnscmred
Bailarece ai begirning ol the peer 41,045 ad.4ar
Achrances recederd during the year B Gdipy &1 D45
Fsyerus recogrised duming the e (LA N CI3407)
Eatarce af eved of the pear B =0 1 nas
TH1 Conitract bafances primenly comprses of contract lizbilities, repressnfing advance considerstion receved from customsrs
fior the puchass of products.
L CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Current portion of long term financing 12 1,800,000 1.300.000
Currani portion of payable sgainst purchass of land 13 48271 5 A0
Curvent portion of leass liahsities 14 B, 460 5316
1858, T40 1365, 7RG
18 ACCHUED MARKLUP
Leong term fnareing
iaeh-up payasie 12 S ICHE Z1OTa
g CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
181 Contingencies

117

Claims sgmnst ihe Company not ecknowlsdged as debts ars a= follomes:

For 'rm-t:r‘Er 2012 the Additicrsl Commissioner Inland Revernes (Sodit] {PACIH'. Zone-ll, Largs Tavpayers Lind, Lehore
thwoasgh datzd Janusry 31, 2014 meed sdditorsl ten demand of A= BO.48 milion. The tex demand pertains o
disafrwance of deductions trom incoms for lechnical fes, advertisement and publicity, bad debts wntten off and
stock-n-treds wittan off. Furthar, thers was dissgresment over the tax treaiment of cemam metters meluding cal oulaton of
Worke=rs' Wesfare Fund, dlaim {or tax credit end spportionmsnt of otfer mcoms

The Company filed an appesf before Commissoner nlend Asvenue (Appsals) ['CIR (A)] ag=nst the sforesaid order. which
wis dispossd though the eppellste order datsd May &, 2014 wharein the CIR (8] mmended msority of the issues back to
ihe Ezmas=ing officer. The emaining Emes of ‘apporficnmant of other incoms’ and “dissliowsncs of tex credit’ have been
contested by the Company with the Appsllats Tnbunal Inland Revenus ['ATIRY) whesas the tavy deparimant has also
contssted the Esue of Workers” Walfare Fund’ end 'amortization of sdvertisemaent sxpenss’ with the ATIR. Tha Additions]
Commizsionsr Inlsmd Revsnus (Auds) [AGIR), Zone-N, Lergs Tenpayers Unill, Lahore, though noftice daled Juns 8, 215
initiEzd the procsadings under sectson 124 of the Ordinance and confronted the issuss remanded by the CIR (Al to the
Company. which have been duly replied to. Howsver, the espectne order ad nol been finalir=d. Some issues were also
ramanded back to the asessng officer who passed the sppesl sffect order dated Junse 30, 20415 and oested a demand of
Re= &6 millich which was sdjusted sgsinst s refunds of Taw Year 2014,
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19.1.2

19.1.3

19.1.4

19.1.5

19.1.6

19.1.7

Appeal had been filed against the appeal effect order before CIR(A) who confirmed the demand of Rs. 5.6 million. The
Company has preferred appeal before ATIR which is pending adjudication. The Company in consultation with their tax
advisor, is of the view that these tax matters will eventually be decided in favor of the Company; therefore no provision has
been made in these financial statements.

For the tax year 2013, the ACIR through assessment order dated April 30, 2014 passed under section 122(5A) of the
Income Tax Ordinance, amended the taxable income of the Company and raised additional tax demand of Rs. 15.53
million. The tax demand pertains to disallowance of deductions from income for bad debts written off, exchange losses,
write-off of property, plant and equipment, advertisement and publicity expenses. Further, there was disagreement over
the tax treatment of certain matters including calculation of Workers' Welfare Fund and claim for tax credit.

The Company filed an appeal before the CIR (A), which was disposed through the appellate order dated October 27, 2014
wherein the CIR (A) decided some of the issues in favour of the Company. The remaining issues have been contested by
the Company with the ATIR. The department has also filed an appeal with the ATIR on the issues decided in favour of the
Company. The Company had partially paid the demand raised through the amendment order and as a consequence of the
aforementioned appellate order, an amount of Rs. 4.6 million becomes refundable if the appeal effect is given by the
department. The management, in consultation with their tax advisor, is of the view that these tax matters will eventually be
decided in favor of the Company; therefore no provision has been made in these financial statements.

The Company has paid 12.8 million under protest and filed an appeal before the CIR (A), which was disposed through the
appellate order dated October 27, 2014 wherein the CIR (A) decided some of the issues in favour of the Company. The
remaining issues have been contested by the Company with the ATIR. The department has also filed an appeal with the
ATIR on the issues decided in favour of the Company. The case has been decided where most of the points were decided
in company's favour.

For the tax year 2014, the CIR through assessment orders dated March 1, 2018 passed under section 122(5A) of the
Income Tax Ordinance, amended the taxable income of the Company and raised additional tax demand of Rs. 747.48
million. The tax demand mainly pertain to disallowance of advertisement and publicity; discounts and commission; service
expenses due to non-deduction of withholding tax and expenses on account of gratuity, provident and pension funds. The
Company had filed appeals before the CIR (A) who annulled the impugned demand and remanded back the case to the
assessing officer with directions of re-examination. The management, in consultation with their tax advisor, is of the view
that these tax matters will eventually be decided in favor of the Company; therefore no provision has been made in these
financial statements.

For the tax year 2016, the CIR through assessment orders dated March 31, 2018 passed under section 122(5A) of the
Income Tax Ordinance, amended the taxable income of the Company and raised additional tax demand of Rs. 454.48
million, respectively. The tax demand mainly pertain to disallowance of advertisement and publicity; discounts and
commission; and expenses on account of gratuity, provident and pension funds. An appeal was filed before the CIR(A)
against the order, which has been decided in Company's favor. The department has challenged the matter which is
pending for adjudication and the Company is expecting a favourable outcome.

For the tax year 2019, the ACIR through assessment orders dated December 02, 2020 passed under section 122(5A) of the
Income Tax Ordinance, amended the taxable income of the Company and raised additional tax demand of Rs. 355.56
million. The tax demand mainly pertain to disallowance of royalty and technical fee expense; initial allowance and
depreciation on fixed assets, discounts and commission; advertisement and publicity fee expenses; tax credit under
section 65(B) and expenses on account of stocks written off. The Company has filed appeals before the CIR(A), out of
which most of the issues were decided in company's favour while some points raised by the department were confirmed
having tax demand of Rs. 896,417 against which company filed an appeal with Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue against
the order of CIR(A) which has been heard and the order is still pending. The management, in consultation with their tax
advisor, is of the view that these tax matters will eventually be decided in favor of the Company; therefore no provision has
been made in these financial statements.

The Income Tax Department, during the last reporting period, passed an order under section 161/205 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, creating a demand of Rs. 102.3 million on account of non-deduction/withholding of tax on payments
under various heads. The matter was appealed by the Company before the CIR(A) who annulled the impugned demand and
remanded back the case to the assessing officer with directions of re-examination. The management, in consultation with
their tax advisor, is of the view that all withholding tax deductions have been made and the tax matter will eventually be
decided in favor of the Company; therefore no provision has been made in these financial statements.

A show cause notice for alleged contravention of Section 36-A of the Central Excise Act, 1944 was served upon the
Company on December 21, 2000 by the Collector of Sales Tax & Central Excise, Lahore. The Company contested the
matter before the Collector of Customs, Central Excise & Sales Tax (Adjudication) who issued an order on April 21, 2001 in
favour of the show cause notice. The Company was thereby ordered to pay an amount of Rs. 40.61 million. The Company
preferred an appeal before the Customs, Excise & Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal which was accepted in total through order
dated March 29, 2002.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

An appesd hes been filed by the Colectior of Sales Tax & Cantral Evciss | shors befors the Honomabls Lahore High Cowrt,
Lahore. The app=al iz pending adjudicstion. The management, in consuftation with their tax sdwisor. is of the view that
these tax mattsrs will sventually be dscided in favor ol the Company; therefore no provissn has b=sn mads in e
fmancial statemeants.

10.1.8 The department E=wsd order dated Decembse 29, 2017 creating & demand of As. 13. 18 million o respect of =ales =y for
the paniod fram July 20413 to Jun= 2014, The o= wes challenged bafore CIR(A) wha, vide his crds datsd Apnl 30, 2018,
gawe partial relis! to the Company and confrmed the impugned demand amounting fo A 7.87 million. The Company
prefered an appsal before the ATIR against the decison of CIRJAL wich uphsid the ormer of CIR(A] wde As omder dated
September 08, 2018 Beng sggrieved, the Company hes filed reference before the Honomsble Lshors High Gourl sgaenst
the decison of ATIR, which is yet to be foed for hearing.

18.1.8 The Company's declarsd tas=bls income and tas ligbilty for tex y=ar 20240 wes snendsd by the Tavation CHiicse in March
2022 and raised a further demand of As. 743,308 million against the Company. This arder was chafiengsd by the Company
with the CIALA), who decided most of the issues in depariment’s faour, The Company has filed appeal with ATIA so=mst
the ordar of CIRJA} which s yet o b= fived for heasring. The mansgement, i conmuiltstion with their ey edvisor, i=of the view
that thezs tay mattzes will svenbually be dacidsd n fzvor of the Company; thersfors no provision has bsan mads in fhess
fmancial statements.

10.1.10 The Comparny s declared Evabls income and tax kebiiity for the 't ysar 200 7 was smandad by the Tastion Officer inJuns
2023 and further demand of As 1, 742008 millon was raissd against the Company. This order was challengad by the
Company with the Commissioner Inland Aevanue [Appeals} [CIRA]]. wheo decided most of the ssues in company's favor
wids order datesd Saptember 25, 2023, while some points raised by the depariment were remanded back and confirmesd
agains the Company. The Company has lled appesl with Appsliats Tnbunal Infand Revenus [(ATIH] against the order of
CAR[A) which is pending adpedication. The Company = expacting & f@oursble cutcome.

10111 The Comparny’s declarsd tavnbés mcome and to Eblity for the By psar 200 8 was amended by the Tasston Officer in Juns
2024 and further demeand of Ra: 2,268 341 milkon was raised against the Company. The taxpayer Company filad an appeal
against the mpugned order of the ass=s=ng officer belors ATIR, which s pernding edjusication. Subssoqusnt fo the year
end, tha FBR attached the Compeny's bank sccowm and withdrew Rs. 303 770 million in beu of (ha cass. The Comparry
fil=d an app=al befors ATIR agenst sttachment of benk sccounts snd vnthdraswsl of funds as the Compamy hed obtminsd
stay pnor to that and now is hopaful that the decssion will be in company’s favor

181,12 The Company & currently invohwed in a legal dspute with & former employes, who has filsd a claim for Rs. 160 millior,
which = pending adjudication before the Honomeble Peshawar High Court. Based on legal counsal's asssssment. the
Compay 5 confident of & favorsbles ouicoms in thes matter. As of the reporting dete, no provision hes been mads for thes

cl=m in the financisl statsments.
18.1.13 The Company = currently mvolved in severs! legal cesss aooss various foruma. Pue io the rsture of thes claims, the
Amounis in As ‘000
Mots 2024 palva |

182 Commitrmenis

1027 Commtrments nrespect of capital avpsndiiors - &6 TEY

1022 The commitments of future Eyments with respect o leases and Beah finsneing conbracts in the yeear in which thass
payments shall E=roms des se as fnlows

Yoar
ei ] - 45 naf
b 24,110 11 055
028 18,438 1& DEd
03T 12 FET 24 431
i) 1,594 430
B3, 351 156, TE2
Paysiie nat il 1han one yee 25,132 48,891
Parpabie talsr than one year buf nat ater than five peom e 108, B
03351 158,

Conbracts undss ljarah agresments have been sccounted for under IFAS-2, and sccordingly classified as opersting ls=sea

1023 Commitmsnts mrespect of pulstanding lstters of credit #nd outsianding |stier of gusranies &t the reporiing date e besn
disclo==d in note 34 4 of these financis! siEtemenrts

1024 The Compaw has a commitment in respect of indemmity soresment signed with 10| Pakestan Limitad o cover the possibls
putcomes of the tay =suss of 101 Pakistan Limitsd prior io demsmer up o the extsnt of A 1 583 milson [2023; Bz 1,583 million).



il Flageaar S0
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Ampunts in Bs ‘000
Mois 2024
2 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIFMENT
Opmrabryy tived mwamky i 11,180 B5S 7800 754
Capiisl work -r-progress | el 756,603
TLI3T bl 1 548 W57
20.1 Opersting fixed asssts
The followrdg is the ststemant of property, plant and sgquiprmesnt-
Paugickngy zn Flart md Furtslurs gns Olikzs
Fraphzsi e bwphred e N " Tkl
el cETENG vibel LEEE
Vo DHOED CECERMEER 11 24
[T e ———— 0] T LazLami i o PP e fT R
Sabfters il o=l - | il - ool -] TELTER ms | 5% P
Cheremes wrxd #rmm ofts wr FEns - - m - Iy ]
s plgtoon o e e I = EEE \F A - - - 2T .
e chareeed s tha pee Pl TS 17 135 A, - - [e=0 R N
OamrE gt —=y=s == % ;am z IELIET) T P T L [ MLrEn [ pETER
dglriprmeris by e paar [Sais TT L - b W [+ BRI - - =
Doy e o s A TUE - B S R B LR (5 us] =y T ESn
Grous CHTpmy A i
Tamr ENDED CECESEEN T, 2153
[areege——————] & TERADD P TIl 3 AR T =l i 3T [Lifmam
B = rrom caprecabs 2 - e B G| RELE ] L el T Ly
L] Semh e |l £ TRE 47 LIATE Y 1LEFLEm ELEE TFEEE ol I, N
=mi TEFTFNIE WRESE TEEe
¥ ansind Dazwiser 11, D1
Crperery] =m e e FEYY b e e Jre Sed &0 o o, T 2 & I I
il lal =¥ 7 = AR SR §AFRMI L =y AR T3
[heemman e &= wtx id Wl Fjm LN
Oarre—mizm —args v S v [ =il AT R e rEr) —E L ] (k11 =0 D]
dalp gy iy ey e i (4 i ] [EE [ ] 1 I
—— ., 4 $E.- W 5 LM 147117 e S =B ) EEILT L&t o EEEL P
Grzus carrpey AEs baws
Famr wreal Oeremer T, IT—
Lo - o el B SO P LF A ] IS8R Vhd Rl = 40 HE & ins Erddaan
iy == ] thwpre i INTRI%F) 5T ONT JUES, LRSS Tl B L] | Rl
[Ty a—— L AR 1 EE ] TR T i, T
Depreciafion rete [V per anmrm) i-an 8- mm iz -3 O

22 The Company's lend, situsted at 346 Ferorspur Acad, Lshore, with an assess=d valus of B= 4,268 million, & not currenily ksted
under the Company's name in the LOA records. The same i listed in the name of the Company's predecessor in LDA s records.
The honourable Sedh High Cowirt has decrsed the megsrfamaligameaton of the Company, pursusnt to which the reconds of LA,
ought = be amended acoordingly. The Company = in the process of getting emanded the recomds of LOA so =s to refisct the
Company baing ths ownsr ol the lend in e name. | s howesver imparard to nots thet = Company holds esclusss posssssion
and control nghts over the land.

2.3 Durng the year ass=is have b=en despos=d by the Company amd the aggregate book value of the ==ssis dspossd does ot
excead free million rupses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Amounts in As ‘000
Mots 224 M3
204 The cepsrecaion chorpe o (e pesr Pes Do alloesiee s Sl
Tt il ey » 240 DS 184, Lsf
Sefiing and diztrindion exporreen Iy g ] 52 503
ereral ond aimemsingsa saperme a8 7.5 14,533
D =4,y
Deprecaation (or fhe yesr nchices monsitehial depreciation dos o reveustion, srsting to As 58 5 mellion @023 As. 710N millon
208 During the yeut. e Cofnpany compieled the capiisicobon saercise for ife Bes Woon lactory miocation Propect. The Company hes
rectasfied an amourd ol B 388.17 milion fom plant ard machneny B bulding, which ses. ihcomectly Slassified undsr ant ad
machineny s yer bosed o the estimated capitalestion of the progest
e K Flart and mechinery includes Poai mic machines and YA mils mackenss esing @ met book value of Az 71524 million and P 8.198
rrifion resped iively minch ore locsied of e premises of the oueinmess. Thess ssseis e ploced 8l deses afop = per agreed bemm
hirarevat, the cwnership righis remain with (he compaimy
T Hazl therw teen no mvabahion, the e book value of specific closses of froge ty, plart and sgugment would hase amourted b
Freoroid et 0, O a1nd
Busicirgs on Feeroid e Ll a0d 1, 4TA2TS
Flant and riachitery 2180, 585 2. TR0 D23
o, T 55D &R AT
MHE Thee oo wale wmboe of s=pboeed propersy plerd el eoctiresy == e e ieed endebis ek o, corcired in Cecsreteer 37 2004, oree pe ol
Faricutars Date of impection Revaliaton report dates ——
Freoroid et
<388 Fernremr Aood, Letwws, Prokintan Decertion 2124 Fetbrunry 10, 2025 3di4 T
-Port Ciymm, Earact, Pakistan st X124 Pty 10, 20125 152 00
-FIECAC | Fasmmlabad Palestan Decerier 2024 Fefruary B, 225 S08 000
AT TR0
B dicinor o Peelend Ly
-8 Faroeemor Pomd, Lsfom, Pakestan st 24 Fetmumry 10, AES T 145
-Port O, Karachi, Pakistan Decmrriber X324 Felrunry 10, 2025 4 3
-FIEDWAC . Fasmiohad Pakedan Decerioer X124 Fetriiiry B 2025 1. FEN 7S
1,801 TR
Fiart and rmachimery et 124 Pty 10, 25 IT 487
~Port Oy, Knracii, Pakissant Decermber 2024 Fetwuary £ 205 e -
e LA
B3 ARG
208 The Company asn o= o fresfnid o ooated ot Faixainbes indaivsd Esats Devsaprment and Managerrent Compeemy bemed on
proveEgns siotment et
20,18 Thers i o inCremental depreciaton recognered on e rmoleshon suphes for the yer, as the nevaluabon i conducted os of
Decwrrthar 01, 2004
201 Dhyrryg the yemar, the Comparry nevalued iz property, pant, and equpmeni, resulimg @ oesn smpaemant oes on @ lackony baliding
Iex=yiwet iny Feimslnbned @ o coererd mamied comncilions:
a2 Land - fresnold of the Gorngsarny s iocafed at Fermpur mad, Lshore, Porl Clesim, armory and FEDRME, Feisaiatacd with an srea of 5272271
ks Ciedail of factory taiding of the Cormpery cominectedt on this land e o iolloses
Covered nrea Scoft
Particulsry Dheries ol irewpsciion Fanre | i1 5 ]
2380 Fornrgar Aood, Lesfore, Palrston ighrin biichng, wershouss stones, B & O inborstany,
vanay b e cor pewiorel. £, ooa EA1,008

Virshoee st rereor, rench ooreer,
Port T, Karachi, Pabestan oifsce bl ol bourrieny vl 0T A0 7,121
FETRAES | Faisststzwt Pakissan Prooe=s il AFTC plart. sorag yad, arad sersre arns
chrorma scan mam, affoe biock. B & O Lsboratang,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 Rl
Mots 224 o it |
1.0 Fair wniue meossreiner of beehoid land, biildng ard piant snd machinery am based on the yalustiorn caried md by an independend

waumr Wia Joseph Lobo (Prvatai Lmbed 2a s Decemiter 11, 2024 on the o of imaret volue

4| CAPITAL WORK-N-PROGAESS
Ths corrpreess of
Clwil works and buiidings i 2081 7,714
Pt it risachinesy .1 a4 dna, 054
Tunmen Hi . 1 05
Hindl, e T5A, 6O
21.9 Wovement of comying amount

Ciwil weomrks Plant sk Eguimpmeni Tokal
Year ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 e buliings achinany
Opening balancs 2ET T4 AEn 084 1, RS TR 803
Addilion T 348 82 572 - 12477
Temnmierred bo opeialing fined ssseis [T, o 822, B 11535 TOAS11H
Champed 10 prodit oF o - . E .
Clomng balance ik LY B, 458 . TG A
Year entded December 371, 3023
Opening batarics 1, 7302 Beo LR = 2 B85 aNT
Addilionr i A5 1 Gl 300 1.E35 2 5 IEE
Trammierred to opseating fiaed st 1,478,018 2451 350 AS2B3ITT)
Charged 1o profit of lom [1 20 - {720}
Cineeng bsinnoe SET. T4 50 54 1B TaE 60

b4 B Ched wotis & tndlcings and plant ard riechirery inclides borrraang oost copitalmed dunng the yaer smoonting 1o As. B47 rellion @025
e 197 mrilian) and Pa 4688 milken U003 As, 196 28 millor, espechiety ol the reie al ranging om 17517 % to 23071 % 2055 17515
o 2301 %) e armum

213 The Company during 2021 ertered Mo an BPC cortract with Oescon Engneering Limiled for the corestruction of ol work, biliding and
Intaliatan telseation of plant and machinesy at Allams Igkal irdustrial ey Spacal Eoonomic Zore:

214 DCharing the year, the Compary han tronsfermed of New Moo (miccation of oo proect besed on complation.

= AGHT-0F-USE ARSETS
Bumiciing
Yeor ended December 31,
Mot carmying valus bazia
Ciperinig net bowsl vahee [Saremry OF ) 3 ree f.30%
Aodrtions drmg e y=r 21 - R R hp]
Cepeoaion cierps 37 [T 50| el
Coming ned book voiles 1.348 I ToE
Gross cammying walue basis
Cirst "nan 1 AT
Acromuiatss deprecation o, 025} [T
Pl ook L= frac SR TR
Deswrocstion rotes [ per st s Pl

ZE1 Thin repressnis rerewal of rendal agreement of five year 03 Karschi for regonal office.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Amounts in Rs ‘000

Moi= 2024 2y
b= | INTANGIDLE ASSETS

Cost
Bslanre a5 28 ey 07, Bl BT3 a8 180
Afdstiors lor the year Al * 48,713
Blniniwre ss 88 Dec 31, Ba.BT3 B BT
Amortization
Blsiance as 28 Jar 01, =, B3 Mas19)
Crargs for the year 37538 vl ELAE
Blalanre = 88 Dec 31, 21,1 B} 241, 1By
Carmyr wnlus 26 64T 50 621
Arnorizmdion ixde (W Der B M 20

b | LCrkpG TERR LOANS

Secured - comsidered good
- Epsrritives 244 S, BES 5 ET
Cher emplopses &5, 815 52,741
10, 800 108 GEE
Le=mn Fscsyabse v ohe yee an {7, TEE 31, 01
o2 T T 54l

o Rercilinton of the carrpng amount of loars D esscuives
Halmnce at begnning of the year S BT 15 805
Disbrasmerits - gross InE8 53137
HAepaymernts / adustratts |31 B (&0 10|
Haolance ai end of the year 54,085 A3 FT

R Lomrs fo emoioys=s sre prowsced for ponchoss of motorepcie, modor oo and conetroction of feeme Vs ioare ame sscpred) apemnes
registradion documents of vehicles and hoise maldig ioans sm secues agmnst provident fund. gatuilty, pestson o sy ofber does
payabis ko the employes=.

243 Loares for purchass of motzr cars and howse bullding ame regayable betwesn bvo 10 120 years. These Ioar ane leresi-ies and granted
o ihe employess including ssecubves of e Company n accordance wah their terms of employment. The Company @ enfitied o
recover from the emipioyes's salary and olber duss n cme of default. Thess (o om ecogaiced et ermorlized oosd uwing the effectie
irieres e prevaiing ot mportrig date.

24 The maximom aggregete gross amoont of long teem e Gos rom e erecurtves 2t e end of sy momth dunng e yeer s Fe
G307 mifion 20FY A 7080 milicn)

| LOWG TEANM DEPOSITE AND PREPATYMENTE
Deposits 5.1 2,82 JLOE
SrEpgrrmety an 1. 708

3,242 4 85

M These seposts do nol SaTy =80y ni=mst or mark-up and s Aol ecoverstis within one year. FRS § regures Iorg-1erm non imeresd
benrng fimancial zseet= o be decoumed at sverage bormowirig raole af the Company. The imgact of discounting & orratbens henos
these are ol rermennured.

- DEFERAED TAX fLIARILITY) / ASSET - MET

o R | The balares compmees of tha fallowsng temesorny differances:

Deductible termparary difforences

Priovesaorms, 155218 248 51T
Lapem Eabsdily agamst nghd-of-use: st 4,745 8 FRg
Intanpicles aoro

Remeesremeni of defired berel Gebsimty 130Ty 21,054
Tonshie Hases ME “ 108 aES
B e foemeresr tax oo 113,782 8 540

M, TR JTe aTE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Amounts in Rz ‘000

Hols 2024 2y
Tazzble temporary difierences
Property, plani and squisment (O, L E0) 00 5270
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[Fed 3T (=TT
Met defered iz [latsliby) / asuet (S S5 71,0
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 Amounts in Rs 000
28 STOCK IN TRADE Note 2024 2023
Raw materials:
-in hand 931,904 1,104,523
- in transit 122,661 375,224
1,054,565 1,479,747
Work-in-process 40,909 43,711
Finished goods 1,106,152 999,095
Goods purchased for resale 20,648 31,488
2,231,274 2,554,041
Provision for slow moving and obsolete stock in trade:
- Raw material (10,581) (28,182)
- Finished goods (41,543) (42,585)
28.1 (52,124) (65,767)
2,179,150 2,488,274
28.1 Provision for slow moving and obsolete stock-in-trade
Balance at beginning of the year 65,767 75,861
Adjustment during the year
Provision charged during the year 36 & 37 16,259 78,984
Provision reversed during the year (12,930) -
3,329 78,984
Stock written-off against provision (16,972) (89,078)
Balance at end of the year 52,124 65,767
29 TRADE DEBTS
Considered good
- Secured 29.1 501,556 476,156
- Unsecured 1,733,237 1,593,144
2,234,793 2,069,300
Considered doubtful 53,709 76,954
2,288,502 2,146,254
Less: allowances and provisions
- allowances for impairment of trade debts 29.2 (563,709) (76,954)
- provision for discounts 29.3 (429,322) (707,255)
(483,031) (784,209)
1,805,471 1,362,045
29.1 These trade debts are secured against bank guarantees and security deposits.
29.2 Allowances for impairment of trade debts
Balance at beginning of the year 76,954 80,558
Adjustment on account of:
Charge 39 12,821 26,668
Debts written-off against allowance (36,066) (80,272)
Net adjustment (23,245) (3,604)

Balance at end of the year 53,709 76,954
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29.3 Provision for discounts
Balance at beginning of the year 707,255 568,095
Charge for the year - net 1,937,708 1,374,746
Discounts paid during the year (2,215,641) (1,235,586)
Balance at end of the year 429,322 707,255
30 LOANS AND ADVANCES

Secured - considered good

Current portion of long term loans to:

- Executives 14,983 16,205
- Other employees 22,786 14,814
24 37,769 31,019

Unsecured - considered good
Advances to contractors and suppliers 4,774 24,428
42,543 55,447

31 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

Trade deposits - -

Short term prepayments 2,459 2,415
2,459 2,415
32 OTHER RECEIVABLES
Unsecured - considered good
Due from related parties 32.1 27,209 51,081
Others 5,126 1,198
Sales tax adjustable 32.4 - 208
Receivable from employee retirement benefit funds 11.11 56,921 24,451
89,256 76,938
321 These represent receivable from following related parties:

Akzo Nobel Decorative Coatings - 2,630
Akzo Nobel N.V. 8,765 13,370
Akzo Nobel Netherland B.V. 4,344 4,630
Akzo Nobel Paints Singapore Pte Limited - 6,178
Akzo Nobel Coating Vietnam Limited 1,400 1,402
Marshall Boya Ve Vernik Sanayi - 1,946
Akzo Nobel Car Refinishes PO 8,359 9,608
ICl Omicron B.V. - 2,500
AkzoNobel Paints Malaysia - 710
Akzo Nobel Coatings Dongguan Co. Ltd. - 1,675
Akzo Nobel Performance Coatings Shanghai Co. Ltd. - 1,484
Akzo Nobel Limited - 1,997

Akzo Nobel Limited PNG 4,341 -
Akzo Nobel Industrial Coatings - 2,951
32.1.1 27,209 51,081

32.1.1  This represents advance/receivable against goods/services to be purchased from related parties.
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42 OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets - 17,631
Profit on short-term deposits
Income from non-financial assets
Scrap sales 17,352 13,724
Stock provision reversed 28.1 12,930 -
Interest on loans to staff 24.3 23,128 -
Exchange gain 12,467 -
Trade and other payables written back 47,570 -
Miscellaneous income 15,873 -
129,320 31,355
43 LEVY
Current
Current year minimum tax 43 .1 113,792 116,765
Prior year (1,997) 59,862
111,795 176,627
43.1 This represents Minimum taxes paid under Section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 representing levy in terms of requirements of
IFRIC 21/1AS 37.
44 TAXATION
Current year - -
Prior year - -
Deferred 26.2 & 26.3 170,171 55,549

170,171 55,549
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45 CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) / profit before levy and taxation (382,438) 407,190
Adjustments for:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 20.4 343,232 254,001
Amortization on intangible assets 23 32,004 9,663
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 22 7,450 7,806
Provision for employee benefits obligation 11.2 31,122 39,242
Net impairment losses on financial assets 39 12,821 26,668
Interest on loans to staff 42 (23,128) (17,631)
Exchange gain 42 (12,467) -
Provision for slow moving and obsolete stock 37 16,259 78,984
Provisions no longer required written back (12,930) -
Impairment loss on buildings 20 26,494 -
Interest expense on lease liability 40 4,847 3,355
Interest expense on payable against land 40 8,320 12,616
Mark-up on Long term loan 40 321,135 -
Loss on assets written off 41 7 894
Exchange loss 41 - 132,272
755,166 547,870
Net cash flows from operating activities before working capital changes 372,727 955,060
46 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise of the parent Company (IClI Omicron B.V.), the ultimate parent Company (Akzo Nobel N.V.), related group
companies, staff retirement funds, companies where Directors also hold directorship, Directors and key management personnel of the
Company, and their close family members. Details of transactions with related parties, other than those which have been specifically
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows:

Associated and parent Purchase of goods, materials and services 418,403 304,470
companies Sale of goods and services - 3,352
Reimbursement of expenses 28,436 33,660
Royalty paid 240,345 189,018
IT services 169,941 197,541
GBS services 239,982 103,886
Commission 8,657 -
Share capital issued (including premium) - 485,950
Advance against shares issued 639,170 -
Retirement benefit plan Contributions made to retirement funds / plans 77,054 93,879
Key management personnel Remuneration of key management personnel 77,158 78,427
46.1 The above transactions with related parties are carried out on mutually agreed terms and conditions.
46.2 Following are the details of related parties incorporated within / outside Pakistan with whom the

Company had entered into transactions or had agreements and / or arrangements in place during the financial year:
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2024

2023

Basis of association

Name of the related party

Country of
incorporation

Aggregate % of
shareholding*

Outside Pakistan:

Parent company ICI Omicron B.V. Netherlands 98.32%

Group / associated company Akzo Nobel Car Refinishes B.V. Netherlands -
Akzo Nobel N.V. Netherlands -
Akzo Nobel Saudi Arabia Limited Saudi Arabia -
International Paints Netherlands -
Pinturas Inca SA Uruguay -
ICI Swire Paints (Shanghai) Limited China -
Akzo Nobel Coatings Int. B.V. Netherlands -
Akzo Nobel Middle East FZE UAE -
Akzo Nobel (China) Investment Co. Limited. China -
Akzo Nobel Netherland B.V. Netherlands -

Akzo Nobel Packaging Coatings Limited

United Kingdom

International Paint (Nederland) B.V. Netherlands -
International Farbenwerke GmbH Germany -
Akzo Nobel Decorative Coatings Netherlands -
Akzo Nobel Car Refinishes SL Spain -
Akzo Nobel UAE Paints L.L.C UAE -
Akzo Nobel ME Coatings FZE UAE -
Marshall Boya Ve Vernik Sanayi Turkey -
Akzo Nobel Paints Malaysia Malaysia -
International Paint Singapore Singapore -
International Paint Indonesia Indonesia -

Akzo Nobel Industrial Coatings

International Paints LLC

United Kingdom
USA

Akzo Nobel Paints (Thailand) Limited Thailand -
Akzo Nobel Oman SAOC Oman -
PT ICI Paints Indonesia Indonesia -
Associated company / Akzo Nobel Paints Singapore Pte Limited Singapore -
common directorship
Akzo Nobel Paints Vietnam Limited Vietnam -
Within Pakistan: Akzo Nobel Pakistan Limited
Retirement benefit plan Management Staff Provident Fund Pakistan -
Akzo Nobel Pakistan Limited
Management Staff Gratuity Fund Pakistan -
Akzo Nobel Pakistan Limited
Management Staff Pension Fund Pakistan -
Akzo Nobel Pakistan Limited Management Staff
Defined Contribution Superannuation Fund Pakistan -
Akzo Nobel Pakistan Limited
Non-Management Staff Provident Fund Pakistan -

This represents aggregate % of shareholding, including shareholding through other companies or entities.

The closing balances have been disclosed under the relevant notes of these financial statements.
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47 RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The
Executive Management Team is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The team
regularly meets and any changes and compliance issues are reported to the Board of Directors. Risk management systems are
reviewed regularly by the Executive Management Team to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The
Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. The Board oversees compliance by management with the
Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the
risks faced by the Company.
48 (LOSS)/ EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share
Profit for the year (after tax) (664,405) 175,014
(Number of shares)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 48,248,163 47,496,145
(Rupees)
(Loss) / Earnings per share (13.77) 3.68
48.1 EPS of last year has not been restated as the Company believes that there is no bonus element due to the unavailability of fair market value.
Exercise price, which is Rs. 270, is considered as a fair value price.
48.2 Diluted earnings per share
‘There is no dilutive effect as the Company does not have any convertible instruments in issue as at December 31, 2024 and December
31, 2023, which would have any effect on the earnings per share if the option to convert was exercised.
49 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:
Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3: Techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market
data.

There were no financial instruments held by the Company which are measured at fair value as of December 31, 2024 and December 31,
2023.

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognised at the end of the reporting period during which the changes have
occurred. However, there were no transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy during the year.
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50 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
Note Carrying amount Fair value
Other
Amortised (FVPL/
cost FVOCI) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
On-Balance sheet financial instruments
As at December 31, 2024
Financial Assets at FV or amortised cost
Long term loans 24 102,732 - 102,732 - - - -
Long term deposits 25 3,182 - 3,182 - - - -
Trade debts 29 1,805,471 - 1,805,471 - - - -
Loans and advances 30 37,769 - 37,769 - - - -
Other receivables 32 89,256 - 89,256 - - - -
Cash and bank balances 34 1,049,775 - 1,049,775 - - - -
3,088,185 - 3,088,185 - - - -
Financial liabilities at FV or amortised cost
Long term financing 12 1,900,000 - 1,900,000 - - - -
Accrued markup 18 34,306 - 34,306 - - - -
Deferred liabilities 11 87,364 _ 87,364 _ _ - -
Lease liabilities 13& 14 71,528 _ 71,528 _ _ _ .
Trade and other payables 15 3,844,281 3,844,281
Unpaid dividend 3,188 - 3,188 h - B B
Unclaimed dividend 27,813 - 27,813 - - - -
6,002,786 - 6,002,786 - - - -

On-Balance sheet financial instruments
As at December 31, 2023
Financial Assets at FV or amortised cost
Long term loans 24 74,549 - 74,549 - - - -
Long term deposits 25 3,082 - 3,082 - - - -
Trade debts 29 1,362,045 - 1,362,045 - - - -
Loans and advances 30 31,019 - 31,019 - - - -
Other receivables 32 76,938 - 76,938 - - - -
Cash and bank balances 34 957,625 - 957,625 - - - -

2,505,258 - 2,505,258 - - - -
Financial liabilities at FV or amortised cost
Long term financing 12 1,300,000 - 1,300,000 - - - -
Accrued markup 18 43,078 - 43,078 - - - -
Deferred liabilities 11 80,261 - 80,261 - - - -
Lease liabilities 11 & 12 118,993 - 118,993 - - - -
Trade and other payables 15 4,076,634 - 4,076,634 - - - -
Unpaid dividend 3,188 - 3,188 - - - -
Unclaimed dividend 26,253 - 26,253 - - - -

5,648,407 - 5,648,407 - - - -

50.1 The Company has valued free hold land, building and plant and machinery at fair value and classified under property, plant and equipment
and investment property. The carrying value and level of fair value of these non - financial assets have been disclosed in the relevant note to
the financial statements.

50.2 Due to the Company’s long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving due consideration to their strong
financial standing, management does not expect non performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the Company. Accordingly,
the credit risk is minimal.
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51 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk
The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate
risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly.
51.1 Credit risk
Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter parties failed completely to perform
as contracted, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. The Company does not have significant exposure to any
individual counter party. To reduce exposure to credit risk, the Company has developed a formal approval process whereby credit limits
are applied to its customers. The management also continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the customers and makes
provision against those balances considered doubtful of recovery. To mitigate the risk, the Company has a system of assigning credit
limits to its customers based on an extensive evaluation based on customer profile and payment history. Outstanding customer receiv-
ables are regularly monitored. Some customers are also secured, where possible, by way of inland letters of credit, cash security
deposit and bank guarantees.
a) Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is:
Long term loans 24 102,731 74,549
Long term deposits 25 3,182 3,082
Trade debts 29 1,805,471 1,362,045
Loans and advances 30 37,769 31,019
Trade deposits 31 - -
Other receivables 32 89,256 76,938
Bank balances and short term deposits 34 1,049,775 957,625
3,088,184 2,505,258
Secured
Long term loans 24 102,731 74,549
Trade debts 29 501,556 476,156
Loans and advances 30 37,769 31,019
642,056 581,724
Unsecured 2,446,128 1,923,534
3,088,184 2,505,258
Movement / reconciliation of loss allowances for trade debts has been detailed in note 29.2 to these financial statements.
b) Credit quality of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings or
to historical information about counterparty.
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c) Bank balances and accrued interest on short term deposits

Bank balances and short term deposits 1,049,775 957,625

The Company's exposure to credit risk against balances with various commercial banks is as follows:

Credit Ratings Rating

Short term Long term Agency
Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAA JCR-VIS 497,096 537,616
Citi Bank N.A. P-1 Aa3 Moody’s 38,645 39,070
Deutsche Bank A.G. A-1+ A+ S&P 481,376 350,449
Faysal Bank Limited A-1+ AA PACRA 32,658 30,490

1,049,775 957,625

d) Trade debts

The Company makes sales against advances as well as on credit terms. In case of credit sales, payment is generally due within 30 to
90 days from the date of delivery of goods. The trade debts as at the reporting date are classified in Pak Rupees. The aging of trade
debts which are past due at the reporting date is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired 2,078,517 1,888,812
Past due
1 - 30 days 71,864 52,728
31 - 90 days 36,111 55,607
91 - 120 days 8,187 26,007
More than 120 days 93,823 123,100
209,985 257,442
2,288,502 2,146,254
Allowance for impairment of trade debts (53,709) (76,954)
Provision for discounts (429,322) (707,255)
1,805,471 1,362,045

The maximum exposure to credit risk for past due not impaired at the reporting date by type of counter party is:

Distributors / wholesale customers 101,560 49,246
Retail customers 153,431 167,198
End-user customers 24,151 4,076

279,142 220,520
Allowance for impairment of trade debts (53,709) (76,954)

225,433 143,566
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e) Loss allowance for trade debts

The Company determines the loss allowances for trade debts based on the following ageing under the expected credit loss model:

2024
Neither past Past but Past but Past and Past and As at
due nor not impaired not impaired impaired impaired December
impaired (1 - 30 days) (31 -90days) (91 - 120 days) (More than 31, 2024
120 days)
Expected credit loss rate (%) 0.00% 4.83% 2.25% 0.29% 10.43%
Gross carrying value of
Trade debts 2,078,517 71,864 36,111 8,187 93,823 2,288,502
General allowance - 3,470 812 24 9,784 14,090
Specific allowance - - - - 39,619 39,619
Loss allowance - 3,470 812 24 49,403 53,709
2023
Neither past Past but Past but Past and Past and As at
due nor not impaired not impaired impaired impaired December
impaired (1 - 30 days) (31 -90days) (91 - 120 days) (More than 31, 2023
120 days)
Expected credit loss rate (%) 0.00% 0.24% 0.27% 1.67% 14.25%
Gross carrying value of
trade debts 1,888,812 52,728 55,607 26,007 123,100 2,146,254
General allowance - 125 151 435 17,538 18,249
Specific allowancea - - - - 58,705 58,705
Loss allowance (Rupees in thousand) - 125 151 435 76,243 76,954
f) Other financial assets

The remaining financial assets mainly pertain to balances due from related parties, employees or are otherwise secured. These are
expected to be recovered in due course and based on past experience the credit risk related to these financial assets is not material.

g) Concentration risk
Concentration of credit risk exists when the changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties whose
aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Company's total credit exposure. The Company's portfolio of financial assets is
broadly diversified and all other transactions are entered into with credit worthy counter parties thereby mitigating any significant
concentrations of credit risk.

Construction 125,344 100,598
Transport 321,957 256,897
Dealers 1,567,449 1,438,889
Banks 1,049,775 957,625
Others 62,844 40,131

3,127,369 2,794,140
Allowance for impairment of trade debts (53,709) (76,954)
Provision for discounts (429,322) (707,255)

(483,031) (784,209)

2,644,338 2,009,931
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51.2  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company's approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible to always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. The Company is not
materially exposed to liquidity risk as substantially all obligations / commitments of the Company are short term in nature and are
restricted to the extent of available liquidity. In addition, the Company has obtained running finance facilities from Deutsche Bank A.G.
to meet any deficit, if required, to meet the short term liquidity commitments.

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
statement of financial position to the maturity date. The following are contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting dates:

2024
Carrying Contractual Up to one More than
amount year one year
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Long term financing 1,900,000 1,900,000 1,900,000 -
Accrued markup 34,306 38,889 38,889
Deferred liabilities 87,364 87,364 - 87,364
Lease liabilities 71,528 71,528 54,740 16,788
Trade and other payables 3,844,281 3,844,281 3,844,281 -
Unpaid dividend 3,188 3,188 3,188 -
Unclaimed dividend 27,813 27,813 27,813 -
5,968,480 5,973,063 5,868,911 104,152
2023
Carrying Contractual Up to one More than
amount year one year
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Long term financing 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 -
Accrued markup 43,078 53,029 53,029
Deferred liabilities 80,261 80,261 - 80,261
Lease liabilities 118,993 118,993 55,785 63,208
Trade and other payables 4,076,634 4,076,634 4,076,634 -
Unpaid dividend 3,188 3,188 3,188 -
Unclaimed dividend 26,253 26,253 26,253 -
5,648,407 5,658,358 5,514,889 143,469

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly different amount.
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51.3 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises of interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk.
a) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair values of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. At the reporting date the interest rate profile of Company's interest-bearing financial instruments were:
Effective rate Carrying amount
Note 2024 2023 2024 2023
Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets
Short term deposits 0.00% 19.25% - 85,000
Variable rate instruments
Financial liability
Long term financing 12 13.36% - 16.69% 17.51% - 23.10% 1,900,000 1,300,000
Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Company does not account for the fixed rate financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, therefore a change in interest rates
at the reporting date would not affect statement of profit or loss other than variable instruments which is as follows.
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased / (increased) loss for the year by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 20283.
Profit Or Loss
100 bp increase 100 bp decrease
As at December 31, 2024
Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial liabilities 19,000 (19,000)
As at December 31, 2023
Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial liabilities 13,000 (13,000)
b) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency (FCY) risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into are
denominated in foreign currencies. The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales and purchases, which are entered in a
currency other than Pak Rupees.

i) Significant exchange rates applied during the year were as follows:

Average rate for the year Spot rate as at December 31
2024 2023 2024 2023

Rupee per FCY

AED 76.29 69.42 75.84 76.74
SAR 74.65 67.72 74.14 75.16
JPY 1.89 1.85 1.78 1.99
SGD 209.20 190.96 204.91 213.48
EUR 300.79 276.65 290.08 311.50
usD 280.21 254.13 278.55 281.86
GBP 354.16 315.62 349.71 358.60

i) The Company operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to the US Dollar and the Euro. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognized assets and
liabilities as given below:-
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2024
Note AED SAR SGD EUR usb GBP VND JPY THB Total
Financial assets
Due from related parties 32 - - - 25,831 1,401 - - - - 27,232
Cash and bank balances 34.1 - - - - 542,329 - - - - 542,329
- - - 25,831 543,730 - - - - 569,561
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables - - - - 101,212 - - - - 101,212
Due to related parties 15.1 - - 77,113 153,597 749,884 - - - 4,018 984,612
- - 77,113 153,597 851,096 - - - 4,018 1,085,824
_ _ (77,113) (127,766) (307,366) _ _ _ (4,018) (516,263)
2023
Note AED SAR SGD EUR usb GBP VND JPY THB Total
Financial assets
Due from related parties 32 - - - 46,763 1,818 - - - - 48,581
Cash and bank balances 34.1 - - - - 208,167 - - - - 208,167
- - - 46,763 209,985 - 256,748
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables - - - - 1,671 - - - - 1,671
Due to related parties 15.1 757 587 109,742 161,587 328,270 - - - 4,119 605,062
757 587 109,742 161,587 329,941 - - - 4.119 606,733
(757) (587) (109,742) (114,824) (119,956) - - - (4,119)  (349,985)

i) Sensitiviy analysis
Every 1% increase or decrease in exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, will increase or decrease profit after tax for
the year by Rs. 5.162 million (2023: Rs. 3.459 million). The weakening of the Pak Rupees against foreign currencies would have had
an equal but opposite impact on the post tax profit. The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on
profit / (loss) for the year and assets / liabilities of the Company.

51.4 Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Company’s processes,
personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising
from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behavior. Operational risks arise from all of
the Company’s operations. The Company’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial
losses and damage to the Company’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that restrict
initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior
management within the Company. This responsibility is supported by the development of overall Company standards for the
management of operational risk in the following areas:

- requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorization of transactions;
- requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;
- compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;
- documentation of controls and procedures;
- requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of
controls and procedures to address the risks identified;
- development of contingency plans;
- training and professional development;
- ethical and business standards; and
- risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.
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52 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. The Board of Directors monitor the return on capital, which the Company defines as net profit after
taxation divided by total shareholders' equity. The Board of Directors also monitor the level of dividend to ordinary shareholders. There
were no changes to the Company's approach to capital management during the year and the Company is not subject to externally
imposed capital requirements.

The Company's objectives when managing capital are:

(i) to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders; and
(i) to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new
shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital
employed. Net debt is calculated as long term financing. Total capital employed signifies equity as shown in statement of financial
position plus net debt.

The proportion of debt to equity at the year end was:

Long term finances 1,900,000 1,300,000
Net debt 12 1,900,000 1,300,000
Share capital 482,481 482,481
Reserves 7.2 9,606,087 7,991,048
Advance against issue of right shares 639,728 -

Total equity 10,728,295 8,473,529
Total capital employed 12,628,295 9,773,529
Gearing Ratio 15% 13%

53 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts in these financial statements during the year for remuneration, including certain benefits, to the Chief Executive,
Executive Director, Non-Executive Directors and Executives of the Company are as follows:

Chief Executive Directors Executives

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Meeting fee - - - - - -
Managerial remuneration 19,176 17,429 4,994 8,220 274,361 239,855
Bonus and sales incentives - note 53.2 2,911 1,810 491 1,328 18,885 10,452
Contribution to retirement benefits 598 3,506 2,035 1,731 50,797 48,805
Group insurance 58 60 34 35 1,598 1,285
Rent and house maintenance 700 700 650 780 29,410 28,196

Utilities - - - - - -
Medical expenses 66 919 - 62 13,226 10,394
23,509 24,424 8,204 12,156 388,277 338,987
Number of person(s) 1 1 1 1 75 75

53.1 The Chairman and Executive Directors hold 30 and 20 shares each of the Company respectively.

53.2 Out of the bonus and sales incentives recognized for 2023, payment of Rs. 2.91 million (2023: Rs.1.81 million) and Rs. 19.37 million
(2023: Rs. 11.78 million) were made to Chief Executive and Executives respectively. During the year an amount of Rs. 50.86 million
(2023: Rs. 38.35 million) on account of bonus and sales incentives to management employees has been recognized as expense in the
current year. This is payable in the year 2025 after verification of achievement against target.

53.3 The Chief Executive, one Director and certain Executives are provided with free use of Company maintained cars in accordance with
their entitlement.



Annual Report 2024 F 55
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Amounts in Rs ‘000

Notes 2024 2023

54 EMPLOYEE PROVIDENT FUND

The Company has maintained an employee provident fund trust and investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance
with the provisions of section 218 of the Act and the conditions specified thereunder. Details regarding investments of the provident
fund trust are as follows:

Size of the fund - fund assets 287,233 273,653

Break-up of investments made by the fund are as follows:

2024 (Un-Audited) 2023 (Audited)
Cost Fair value % Cost Fair value %
Government securities 160,394 152,749 53.18% 142,000 136,786 49.99%
Listed securities 42,569 79,120 27.55% 49,677 65,168 23.81%
202,963 231,869 191,677 201,954
54.1 The Comparative figures have been corrected based on audited accounts for the year ended December 31, 2023.
55 PLANT CAPACITY AND ANNUAL PRODUCTION
Annual production - liters in thousands 15,906 17,217

The capacity of the plant is indeterminable because this is a multi-product plant involving varying processes of manufacturing.
56 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES AND EQUITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Liabilities and equity

Transactions Long term Lease

with the owners Financing liability Dividend Total
Balance as at January 1, 2024 495,147 1,300,000 28,573 26,253 1,849,973
Interest on unclaimed dividend - - - 1,560 1,560
Borrowings from banking companies - 600,000 - - 600,000
Advance against issue of right shares 639,728 - - - 639,728
Payment of lease liability - - (10,163) - (10,163)
Interest expense on right of use assets - - 4,847 - 4,847
Balance as at December 31, 2024 1,134,875 1,900,000 23,257 27,813 3,085,945
56.1 Addition of lease liability and interest expense on right of use of asset represents non cash items.
57 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Number of employees as at December 31,
Head office 179 135
Factory workers 47 50
Average number of employees during the year
Head office 157 137
Factory workers 49 50

57.1 The number of employees mentioned above does not include third party contractual employees.
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58

59

60

61

62

63

IJARAH RENTALS

The Company is engaged in a shariah compliant arrangement with Orix Modaraba and Meezan Bank in respect of vehicles under
operating lease / ljarah contracts. Rentals in respect of aforementioned contracts included in financial statements are as under:

Description
Cost of sales 36 10,881 8,488
Selling and distribution expenses 37 35,579 23,636
Administrative and general expenses 38 5,804 6,852

Disclosures other than above are not applicable to the Company.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER REPORTING DATE

No significant event has occurred subsequent to December 31, 2024 other than those mentioned elsewhere in these financial
statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS

All significant transactions and events that have affected the Company's financial position and performance during the period have
been adequately disclosed in the notes to these financial statements.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures where necessary, have been rearranged for the purpose of comparison. However no significant rearrangement
or reclassification has been made during the year ended December 31, 2024 except as follows for more appropriate presentation.

Item description Note From To Amounts in Rs ‘000

Reclassification of

income tax 43 Taxation Levy 176,627

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These financial statements were authorized for issue in the meeting of the Board of Directors held on March 10, 2025.

GENERAL

Figures in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees unless stated otherwise.

Hiblos

Mubbasher Omar Jawairia Hashmi
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
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AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024
NO. OF SHARESHOLDINGS
NO OF SHAREHOLDERS FROM TO Total Shares
5,995 1 100 145,848
1,062 101 500 228,060
135 501 1,000 95,895
104 1,001 5,000 205,667
8 5,001 10,000 65,895
2 10,001 15,000 22,579
2 20,001 25,000 46,574
1 40,001 45,000 40,504
1 45,001 47,398,000 47,397,141
7,310 48,248,163
AKZO NOBEL PAKISTAN LIMITED
CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDING
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024
Sr No. Shareholders Category No. of Shareholder| No. of Shares Percentage
1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse 3 70 0.00
and minor children (to be confirm by Company)
2 Associated Companies, Undertakings and related 1 47,397,141 98.24
Parties (to be confirm by Company)
3 NIT and ICP - - -
4 Banks, Development Financial Institutions 16 8,724 0.02
5 Insurance Companies 5 805 0.00
6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds 6 273 0.00
7 Share holders holding 10% 1 47,397,141 98.24
8 General Public :
a. Local 7,211 817,649 1.69
b .Foreign - - -
9 Others 68 23,901 0.05
Total (excluding : share holders holding 10%) 7,310 48,248,163 100.00
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NOTICE OF 14th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 14th Annual General Meeting (the “Meeting”) of Akzo Nobel Pakistan Limited (the
“Company”) will be held on 29th April 2025, at 10:30 a.m. Virtually to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To confirm the minutes of the 13th Annual General Meeting held on April 30th, 2024.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited accounts of Akzo Nobel Pakistan Limited, for the year ended
December 31, 2024, together with the Auditors Report and the Directors Report thereon.

3. To appoint the External Auditors of the Company and to fix their remuneration.

4. Any other business with the permission of the Chairman.

08 April 2025

Lahore By Order of the Board

Rabia Bakhtawar Pirzada
Company Secretary

NOTES

1. CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER BOOKS:

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from April 23, 2025 to 29 April, 2025 (both
days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of our Shares Registrar, Messrs. FAMCO Share
Registration Services (Pvt) Limited . 8-F, near Hotel Faran, Nursery, Block 6, P.E.C.H.S., Shahrah-e-Faisal,
Karachi, by the close of business on April 22, 2025 will be in time to be entitled to participate and vote in
the meeting.

2, PARTICIPATION IN THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

The members and proxy holders will be able to log in, to participate and vote in proceedings of AGM,
through smart phones or computer devices from any convenient location after completing attendance
formalities. Members are requested to forward their name, CNIC (both sides scanned copies), folio / CDC
account number, cell phone number and email address. with subject ‘Registration for AKZO’s AGM’ at
saimahag.nawaz@akzonobel.com by the deadline of 25th April 2025. Video link will be shared with only
those Members whose emails is received at given email address before 1300hrs on 25 April, 2025.

All Members entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting, are entitled to appoint another person in writing
as their proxy to attend and vote on their behalf. A proxy must be a member of the Company. A corporate
entity, being a member, may appoint any person, regardless of whether they are a member or not, as its
proxy. In case of corporate entities, a resolution of the Board of Directors/Power of Attorney with
specimen signature of the person nominated to represent and vote on behalf of the corporate entity, shall
be submitted to the Company along with a completed proxy form.

3. FORM OF PROXY

In order to be effective, duly completed and signed proxy forms must be received at the Company’s
registered office at 346, Ferozepur Road, Lahore at least 48 hours (excluding holidays) before the time of
the meeting. Form of Proxy is attached to the AGM Notice and can also be downloaded from the
Company’s website: http://www.akzonobel.pk Proxy form should be witnessed by two persons whose
names, addresses and CNIC Numbers must be mentioned on the form.
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4, MANDATORY NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS WHO HAVE NOT PROVIDED THEIR CNICS

All shareholders holding physical shares who have not submitted a copy of their valid CNICs, or passport
are requested to send attested copies of their valid CNICs or passport along with their folio number to the
Company’s Share Registrar. In the absence of a shareholder’s valid CNIC or passport number, the
Company is constrained to withhold payment of any dividend to such shareholders.

5. ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL REPORT 2024

In compliance with section 223(6) of Companies Act 2017, the Company has electronically transmitted
the Annual Report 2024 through email to shareholders whose email addresses are available with the
Company’s Share Registrar, FAMCO Share Registration Services (Pvt) Limited. In those cases, where
email addresses are not available with the Company’s Share Registrar, printed notice of AGM along-with
the QR enabled code/weblink to download the said financial statements have been dispatched. However,
the Company will provide hard copies of the Annual Report to any member on their demand, at their
registered address, free of cost, within one week of receiving such request.

Further, shareholders are requested to kindly provide their valid email address (along with a copy of valid
CNIC) to the Company's Share Registrar, M/s. FAMCO Share Registration Services (Pvt) Limited if the
member holds shares in physical form or to the member’s respective Participant/ Investor Account
Services, if shares are held in book entry form.

6. CHANGE OF ADDRESS AND NON-DEDUCTION OF ZAKAT DECLARATION FORM:
Non-CDC shareholders are requested to notify any change in their addresses immediately and if
applicable provide their non-deduction of Zakat Declaration Form to the Company’s Share Registrar if not
provided earlier. Furthermore, members holding shares in CDC/Participants accounts are also requested
to update their addresses and if applicable, to provide their non-deduction of Zakat Declaration Form to
CDC or their Participants/Stockbrokers.

7. PAYMENT OF PAST E-DIVIDENDS

Shareholders who have not yet submitted their 24 digits International Bank Account Number (IBAN) are
requested to fill Electronic Credit Mandate Form available on Company’s website and send it duly signed
along with a copy of CNIC to the Registrar of the Company. In case shares are held in CDC then
Electronic Credit Mandate Form must be submitted directly to shareholder’s broker/participant/CDC
account services. Provision of IBAN and bank account details will enable the Company to make payment
of past e-dividends through direct credit to shareholder’s bank account.

Q\t’rps://akzonobel.pk/inves’ror-informcﬁion/onpl-onnual-reporisD

8. GUIDELINES FOR CDC ACCOUNT HOLDERS:

CDC account holders will have to follow the guidelines with respect to attending the Meeting and
appointing of Proxies as issued by the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its Circular
1 of January 26, 2000.

9. UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND / SHARES U/S 244 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017:

An updated list for unclaimed dividend/shares of the Company, which have remained unclaimed or
unpaid for a period of three years from the date these have become due and payable, is available on the
Company’s website: http://www.akzonobel.pk

Claims can be lodged by shareholders on Claim Form as is available on the Company’s website. Claim
Forms must be submitted to the Company’s Share Registrar for receipt of dividend/ shares.
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FORM OF PROXY
14" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

I/We of

being members(s) of Akzo
Nobel Pakistan Limited holding ordinary shares hereby appoint or failing
him/her of who is/are also members(s) of Akzo Nobel

Pakistan Limited as my/our proxy in my/our absence to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 13" Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held virtually, on Tuesday, April 29, 2025, at 10.30 a.m., and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand(s) this day of 2025.

Signed in the presence of:

(Signature of Witness 1) (Signature of Witness 2) Signature across
Name of Witness: Name of Witness: Revenue Stamp of
CNIC No.: CNIC No.: appropriate value
Address: Address:

Signed by

Shareholder’s Folio No/CDC Account No

This signature should agree with the specimen
registered with the Company

Notes:

1. This Proxy Form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of the Company, at 346,
Ferozepur Road, Lahore, not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the Meeting.

2. No person shall act as proxy unless he himself is a member of the Company, except that a corporation may appoint
a person who is not a member.

3. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instrument of proxy are deposited by a member with
the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

4. Any alteration made in this instrument of proxy should be initialed by the person who signs it.
5. In the case of joint holders any one may vote either personally or by proxy but if more than one of such joint holders

be present either personally or by proxy that one of the said joint holders whose name stands first on the Register of
Members in respect of such share shall alone be entitled to vote.

For CDC Account Holders/Corporate Entities:

In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met:

(i) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned
on the form.

(i)  Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.
(iliy  The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the Meeting.

(iv)  In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature shall be
submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.
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AkzoNobel

www, akzonobel.com

Since 1792, we've been supphing the innovalive paints
and coatings that help to color people’s ves and
protect what matters most, Our world class portfolio of
brands - including D, Interrational, Sikkens and
Interpon — is trusted by customenrs arcund the globe,
We're active in mone than 150 countries and use our
expertisa to sustain and enhance everyday life,
Because wea beleve every surface is an opportunity. [t's
what you'd expect from a pioneering and
long-established paints company that's dedicated 1o
best of what wa have today = while creating an even
better tomormow, Let's paint the future together,

© 2025 Akzo Nobel Pakistan Al rights reserved,
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Dulux Experience Stores redefine the




